
March 27, 2024 Plan Commission Agenda 

  

Plan Commission  
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130  314-505-8500 Fax:  314-862-3168  
  

AGENDA  

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING  
Wednesday, March 27, 2024 at 6:30 pm  

Loca�on: Hybrid mee�ng (both in-person and virtual* atendance op�ons)  
Heman Park Community Center (975 Pennsylvania Avenue) 

*For virtual meeting details, see next page.   

1. Roll Call  

2. Approval of Minutes  

a. February 28, 2024 Plan Commission Minutes  

3. Public Comments – (Limited to 3 minutes for individual’s comments, 5 minutes for representa�ves 
of groups or organiza�ons.)   

4. Old Business   

a. SUB-22-08 
Applicant: City of University City 
Request: Major Subdivision – Lot Consolida�on 
Loca�on: 6801 Delmar Boulevard 
VOTE REQUIRED 

5. New Business  

a. SUB-24-01 
Applicant: Pitzman’s Co. of Surveyors and Engineers (atn. William K. Berthold) 
Request: Final Plat for Minor Subdivision  
Loca�on: 7111 Washington Avenue 
VOTE REQUIRED 

b. Working Session – Agudas Israel 
Applicant: Agudas Israel of St. Louis Synagogue 
Request: Working session to obtain feedback from the Plan Commission on a proposed 
synagogue 
Loca�on: 8200-8206 Delmar Boulevard and 558, 564, and 568 Mapleview Drive 

c. CUP-24-01 
Applicant: The Showroom Event Center LLC (atn. Ruby P. Walsh) 
Request: Condi�onal Use Permit (CUP) to allow for a banquet hall in the “GC” General 
Commercial District 
Loca�on: 8348 Olive Boulevard 
VOTE REQUIRED 

6. Other Business  

7. Reports  

a. Council Liaison Report  



March 27, 2024 Plan Commission Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 

b. Housing & Third Ward Revitaliza�on Task Force Report   
c. Comprehensive Plan Commitee 
d. Code Review Commitee 
e. Staff Updates 

8. Adjournment   



March 27, 2024 Plan Commission Agenda 

 

Plan Commission  
6801 Delmar Boulevard University City, Missouri 63130 314-505-8500 Fax:  314-862-3168  
  

VIRTUAL MEETING DETAILS  

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING  
Wednesday, March 27, 2024 at 6:30 pm  

Loca�on: Hybrid mee�ng (both in-person and virtual* atendance op�ons)  
Heman Park Community Center (975 Pennsylvania Avenue) 

*For virtual meeting details, see next page.   

 
Observe and/or Listen to the Mee�ng (your op�ons to join the mee�ng are below):  

  
Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
htps://us02web.zoom.us/j/87644895329?pwd=aVRYZ0lBUmZaanY4K3hSYWJrVlZTQT09 
 
Passcode: 629181 
Or One tap mobile: 
    +13052241968,,87644895329#,,,,*629181# US 
    +13092053325,,87644895329#,,,,*629181# US 
 
Or Telephone: 
    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current loca�on): 
    +1 305 224 1968 US 
    +1 309 205 3325 US 
    +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
    +1 646 931 3860 US 
    +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
    +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
    +1 689 278 1000 US 
    +1 719 359 4580 US 
    +1 253 205 0468 US 

    +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
    +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
    +1 360 209 5623 US 
    +1 386 347 5053 US 
    +1 507 473 4847 US 
    +1 564 217 2000 US 
    +1 669 444 9171 US 
    +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 

 
Webinar ID: 876 4489 5329 
Passcode: 629181 
Interna�onal numbers available: htps://us02web.zoom.us/u/kecJS4OFDZ 
 
Ci�zen Par�cipa�on  
Comments may be sent via email to: jwagner@ucitymo.org or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. –  
Aten�on John L. Wagner, Director of Planning and Development.  Such comments will be provided to the 
Plan Commission prior to the mee�ng.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and made 
accessible to the public online following the mee�ng.  Please note, when submi�ng your comments or 
invites, a name and address must be provided.  Please also note if your comment is on an agenda or 
nonagenda item, and a name and address are not provided, the provided comment will not be recorded in 
the official record.   

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87644895329?pwd=aVRYZ0lBUmZaanY4K3hSYWJrVlZTQT09


February 28, 2024 Plan Commission Meeting Minutes DRAFT 
Page 1 of 2 

 
Department of Planning and Development  
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8500, Fax: (314) 862-3168  

   

MEETING MINUTES (DRAFT)  
PLAN COMMISSION  

Loca�on: via Videoconference (Zoom)  
Wednesday, February 28, 2024 at 5:00pm 

  
The Plan Commission held its regular session on Wednesday, February 28, 2024 via Videoconference 
(Zoom). The mee�ng commenced at 5:02 pm and adjourned at 6:20 pm.  
  
Call to Order – (5:02 pm) Chairwoman Holly called the mee�ng to order.   

  
1. Roll Call  

Present            
Al Fleischer Jr.  
Charles Gascon 
Mark Harvey  
Ellen Hartz  
Margaret Holly   
Patricia McQueen 
Tori Gonzalez  
Jeff Hales (Council Liaison) 

 
 
 
 
Staff Present 
Mary Kennedy, Planner 
John Wagner, Director of Planning & 
Development 
John Mulligan, City Atorney

 
2. Approval of Minutes 

a. December 6, 2023 – Ms. Kennedy stated that she did not have notes of who made the first 
mo�on at the December 6, 2023 mee�ng related to TXT-23-04. Commissioner Fleischer 
stated he had made that mo�on. With this correc�on, the December 6, 2023 minutes were 
approved. 

b. December 27, 2023 – Chair Holly shared minor gramma�cal correc�ons to the minutes with 
staff prior to the mee�ng. With those correc�ons, the December 27, 2023 minutes were 
approved. 

c. January 24, 2024 – The minutes were approved with no correc�ons. 

3. Public Comments – None   

4. Old Business – None  

5. New Business   

a. Comprehensive Plan Implementa�on 

Commissioner Gascon, Chair of the Comprehensive Plan Commitee, led a discussion about 
the ac�ons that are assigned to the Plan Commission. Most of the ac�ons that iden�fy the 
Plan Commission as a “Lead Coordinator” also iden�fy the Department of Planning & 
Development as a “Lead Coordinator.” Many ac�ons involve updates to the zoning code and 
encouraging development that align with the comprehensive plan.  



February 28, 2024 Plan Commission Meeting Minutes DRAFT 
Page 2 of 2 

There was discussion about when it’s appropriate for staff and the Code Review Commitee 
to begin working on revising sec�ons of the zoning code to align with the comprehensive 
plan. One approach is in to work incrementally on sec�ons of the code that are most urgent 
to address, in the mean�me un�l a consultant is on board to do the full code update. There 
was concern that the full code update could take a long �me, upwards of 1-2 years, and that 
it’s important that development in the mean�me not be stalled. 

Commissioner Harvey noted that the code update process is also a great �me to engage with 
the private subdivisions in University City, with topics related to allowable housing types, 
such as accessory dwelling units (ADUs). Commissioner McQueen also reminded the group 
that the comprehensive plan iden�fies “Suppor�ng En��es” for each ac�on. The Commission 
on Senior Issues is a “Suppor�ng En��es” for the accessory dwelling units ac�on. 

There was some discussion about ge�ng funds approved through the City Manager and City 
Council for the zoning code update, and when is best to begin wri�ng an RFP. Commissioners 
and staff agreed it best to address code updates comprehensively with the support of a 
consultant; this would be the best use of commissioners’ and staff �me, and would result in a 
beter, more cohesive product. Staff would begin work to request funds for hiring a 
consultant to update the zoning code. Then, an RFP would be put together to begin receiving 
bids for this work.  

Commissioner Gascon mo�oned to recommend to City Council approving funding in the 
upcoming fiscal year for hiring a consultant to rewrite the City’s Zoning Code. Commissioner 
McQueen seconded the mo�on. The mo�on passed with 7 ayes to 0 nays. 

Commissioner Gonzalez suggested that the City ask other community members to get 
involved in the zoning code update process such as by serving on a commitee. Commissioner 
McQueen also suggested that an effort should be made to engage the other boards and 
commissions in the City in the code update and to kick off comprehensive plan 
implementa�on in general. 

6. Other Business – none   

7. Reports: 

a. Council Liaison Report: Council Member Hales reported that he recently toured Crescent 
Plumbing and it’s coming along very well. He will also be touring the Avenir site. He also 
shared with the Commission that he plans to run for Missouri State House of Representa�ves 
this fall.  

b. Staff Updates: Dr. Wagner shared that an offer of employment has been made for the planner 
posi�on so that should be finalized soon. 

c. Housing & Third Ward Revitaliza�on Task Force Report: Commissioner McQueen reported 
that the planning process will now wrap up in June. The consultants will be in town March 20-
22 for community engagement. She also shared a reminder that when celebra�ng Black 
History Month, we should not view it only through the lens of exploita�on and oppression, as 
that minimizes its importance.  

8. Adjournment – The mee�ng was adjourned at 6:20 pm.  

  



  
 
 
 
Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
MEETING DATE:   March 27, 2024 
 
FILE NUMBER:   SUB 22-08 
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:  2 
 
Location:    6801 Delmar Boulevard 
 
Applicant:    City of University City 
 
Request: Major Subdivision – Lot Consolidation  
 
Existing Zoning:   “PA” Public Activity 
Proposed Zoning:   “PA” Public Activity (no change) 
Existing Land Use:   Civic Complex: City Hall, Library  
Proposed Land Use:  Government offices, Library 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Use: 
North: “PA” Public Activity, “HRO” High Density Residential/Office  
East:      “PA” Public Activity, “CC” Core Commercial 
South:     “PA” Public Activity, “HR” High Density Residential 
West: “PA” Public Activity, “SR” Single-Family Residential 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[  ] Yes [  ] No   [ x ] No reference 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
[x] Approval    [  ] Approval with Conditions     [ ] Denial 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Subdivision Plat Application 
B. Record Plat 

 
Why this is on the agenda again 
This Lot Consolidation Plat was originally approved by the Plan Commission on Jun 22, 
2022, and approved by the City Council on August 8, 2022, through Ordinance Number 
7189. The plat was not recorded two years ago, and some of the language on the first 
page of the plat differed from the approved version. For this reason, and because two 
years has passed, we are asking the Commission to approve the plat again. Nothing on 
the second page showing the metes and bounds has changed. This is the same plat 



Page 2 
SUB 22-08 

that was previously approved. It will be forwarded to the City Council for approval again 
in April.  
 
Existing Property and Applicant Request 
The subject property currently consists of three parcels: 601 Trinity Avenue, 6801 
Delmar Boulevard (shown as 6701 Delmar Boulevard on the plat) and 702 Harvard 
Avenue. This latter parcel is the small piece of land just to the north of 601 Trinity 
Avenue. The lot consolidation is being done to meet the MSD (Metropolitan St. Louis 
Sewer District) requirement that private sewers cannot cross property lines. 
 
Staff Review  
Staff reviewed this as part of the “Major Subdivision” process identified in Section 
405.165 of the Subdivision regulations.  
 
Analysis 
Staff has determined that the Plat meets all requirements of 405.380 of the Subdivision 
and Land Development Regulations.     
 
Conclusion/Recommendation 
The proposal meets the intent of all Zoning Code and Subdivision Regulation 
requirements for a Final Plat.  Thus, staff recommends approval – again – of the 
proposed Major Subdivision. 
 
 
 
Enc:  

1. Subdivision Application 
2. Record Plat 

 
 
 

 



C
IT

Y 
O

F 
U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 C

IT
Y

68
01

 D
EL

M
A

R
 B

O
U

LE
VA

R
D

 S
T.

 L
O

U
IS

, M
IS

SO
U

R
I 6

31
30

NOT TO SCALE

LO
T 

C
O

N
SO

LI
D

A
TI

O
N

PL
A

T

LOT CONSOLIDATION PLAT OF

"UNIVERSITY CITY GOVERNMENT BUILDING"
PART OF BLOCKS 1 & 4 OF "UNIVERSITY HEIGHTS"

ALONG WITH PART OF SGT. MIKE KING DRIVE
U.S. SURVEY 378, TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 6 EAST, 5TH P.M.

UNIVERSITY CITY, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

#6701 DELMAR BOULEVARD (BOOK 01088, PAGE 0113)

ALL OF BLOCK FOUR (4) OF UNIVERSITY HEIGHTS ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 6, PAGES 14 AND
15. SUBJECT TO A CERTAIN DEED OF TRUST DATED MAY 15, 1930 IN THE SUM OF SEVENTY-FIVE THOUSAND ($75,000.00)
DOLLARS. SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS ACCORDING TO A PLAT RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 6, PAGES 14
AND 15 AND ACCORDING TO DEED RECORDED IN BOOK 161, PAGE 37 AND OR AMENDED BY DECREE OF THE CIRCUIT
COURT OF ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDED IN BOOK 518, PAGE 9.

#702 HARVARD AVENUE (BOOK 06290, PAGE 1392)

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF HARVARD (FORMERLY OBERLIN) AVENUE, A PRIVATE STREET IN UNIVERSITY
HEIGHTS, A PRIVATE SUBDIVISION IN THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, AND DELMAR BOULEVARD, A PUBLIC STREET IN THE
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI; THENCE NORTHWARDLY ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID HARVARD (FORMERLY
OBERLIN) AVENUE, A DISTANCE OF THREE HUNDRED SEVENTY-TWO AND no/100 (372.00) FEET TO A POINT; THENCE
WESTWARDLY AT A RIGHT ANGLE ACROSS SAID HARVARD (FORMERLY OBERLIN) AVENUE, A DISTANCE OF FIFTY (50)
FEET TO A POINT IN THE WEST LINE OF SAID HARVARD (FORMERLY OBERLIN) AVENUE; THENCE SOUTHWARDLY ALONG
THE SAID WEST LINE OF HARVARD (FORMERLY OBERLIN) AVENUE TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE AFORESAID
DELMAR BOULEVARD AND HARVARD AVENUE; THENCE EASTWARDLY ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID DELMAR
BOULEVARD TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.
BEGINNING AT A POINT IN THE EAST LINE OF HARVARD (FORMERLY OBERLIN) AVENUE, SAID POINT BEING THREE
HUNDRED SEVENTY-TWO AND no/100 (372.00) FEET NORTH OF THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF HARVARD (FORMERLY
OBERLIN) AVENUE, A PRIVATE STREET IN UNIVERSITY HEIGHTS, A PRIVATE SUBDIVISION IN THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY
CITY, MISSOURI AND DELMAR BOULEVARD, A PUBLIC STREET IN THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI; THENCE
NORTHWARDLY ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID HARVARD (FORMERLY OBERLIN)  AVENUE; AND THE SAID EAST LINE
PRODUCED TO A POINT IN THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 2 OF BLOCK 2 OF THE AFORESAID UNIVERSITY HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION,
SAID POINT BEING THREE (3) FEET MORE OR LESS WEST OF THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2 OF BLOCK 2 OD
SAID SUBDIVISION; THENCE IN A STRAIGHT LINE TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2 OF BLOCK 2 OD SAID
SUBDIVISION; THENCE SOUTHWARDLY AND SOUTHWESTWARDLY ALONG A LINE FIFTY (50) FEET EAST OF AND PARALLEL
TO THE EAST LINE OF BLOCK 3 OF SAID SUBDIVISION, TO A POINT IN THE NORTH LINE OF BLOCK 4 OF SAID SUBDIVISION,
SAID POINT BEING FIFTY (50) FEET AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES, EAST OF A POINT FIFTY-SIX (56) FEET SOUTH OF THE
NORTH LINE OF LOT 1 OF BLOCK 3 OF THE AFORESAID PRIVATE SUBDIVISION; THENCE EASTWARDLY ALONG THE NORTH
LINE OF BLOCK 4 OF SAID SUBDIVISION TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID BLOCK 4 OF SAID SUBDIVISION; THENCE
SOUTHWARDLY ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID BLOCK 4 OF SAID SUBDIVISION, ALSO BEING THE WEST LINE OF
AFORESAID HARVARD (FORMERLY OBERLIN) AVENUE TO A POINT IN SAID LINE, SAID POINT BEING THREE HUNDRED
SEVENTY-TWO AND no/100 (372.00) FEET NORTH OF THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF HARVARD (FORMERLY OBERLIN)
AVENUE AND DELMAR BOULEVARD; THENCE EASTWARDLY AT A RIGHT ANGLE ACROSS SAID HARVARD (FORMERLY
OBERLIN) AVENUE, A DISTANCE OF FIFTY (50) FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

ADJUSTED LOT DESCRIPTION

PART OF BLOCKS 1 AND 4 OF "UNIVERSITY HEIGHTS" A SUBDIVISION ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED
IN PLAT BOOK 6, PAGES 14 AND 15 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDS, ALONG WITH PART OF SGT. MIKE KING DRIVE.
LOCATED IN U.S. SURVEY 378, TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 6 EAST OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, UNIVERSITY CITY,
ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF A TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, BY
INSTRUMENT RECORDED IN BOOK 1088, PAGE 113 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDS, SAID POINT BEING ON THE WEST
LINE OF SGT. MIKE KING DRIVE (50 FEET WIDE), 371.81 FEET (372.00 FEET RECORD) DISTANT NORTH OF ITS INTERSECTION
WITH THE NORTH LINE OF DELMAR BOULEVARD (80 FEET WIDE); THENCE ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF SGT. MIKE KING
DRIVE (50 FEET WIDE), NORTH 07 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 13 SECONDS EAST, 108.01 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID
SGT. MIKE KING DRIVE (50 FEET WIDE) AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF SGT. MIKE KING DRIVE (50 FEET WIDE), SOUTH 81 DEGREES 02 MINUTES 51
SECONDS EAST, 50.02 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID SGT. MIKE KING DRIVE (50 FEET WIDE); THENCE ALONG SAID EAST
LINE OF SGT. MIKE KING DRIVE (50 FEET WIDE), SOUTH 07 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 13 SECONDS WEST, 259.12 FEET;
THENCE LEAVING SAID EAST LINE OF SGT. MIKE KING DRIVE (50 FEET WIDE), SOUTH 83 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 45
SECONDS EAST, 280.73 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF KINGSLAND AVENUE (80 FEET WIDE); THENCE ALONG SAID WEST LINE
OF KINGSLAND AVENUE (80 FEET WIDE), SOUTH 07 DEGREES 07 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST, 175.11 FEET; THENCE
SOUTH 52 DEGREES 04 MINUTES 35 SECONDS WEST, 63.69 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF DELMAR BOULEVARD (80 FEET
WIDE); THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF DELMAR BOULEVARD (80 FEET WIDE), NORTH 82 DEGREES 58 MINUTES 20
SECONDS WEST, 322.23 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF TRINITY AVENUE (50 FEET WIDE); THENCE ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF
TRINITY AVENUE (50 FEET WIDE), ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 202.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF
179.97 FEET, THE CHORD OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 57 DEGREES 26 MINUTES 55 SECONDS WEST, 174.08 FEET TO THE
POINT OF A COMPOUND CURVE TO THE RIGHT; THENCE ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 434.00
FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 370.62 FEET, THE CHORD OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 07 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 39 SECONDS
WEST, 359.45 FEET TO THE POINT OF A COMPOUND CURVE TO THE RIGHT; THENCE ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT
HAVING A RADIUS OF 435.08 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 13.50 FEET, THE CHORD OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 18 DEGREES 19
MINUTES 25 SECONDS EAST, 13.50 FEET TO THE POINT OF A COMPOUND CURVE TO THE RIGHT; THENCE ALONG SAID
CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 270.13 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 225.44 FEET, THE CHORD OF WHICH BEARS
NORTH 42 DEGREES 48 MINUTES 52 SECONDS EAST, 218.95 FEET TO THE POINT OF A REVERSE CURVE TO THE LEFT;
THENCE ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 344.00 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 84.43 FEET, THE CHORD
OF WHICH BEARS NORTH 59 DEGREES 41 MINUTES 15 SECONDS EAST, 84.22 FEET; THENCE LEAVING SAID EAST LINE OF
TRINITY AVENUE (50 FEET WIDE), SOUTH 82 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 57 SECONDS EAST, 89.06 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 07
DEGREES 23 MINUTES 13 SECONDS WEST, 184.95 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 240,404 SQUARE FEET,
MORE OR LESS.

OWNER'S CERTIFICATION:
(#601 TRINITY AVENUE, #6701 DELMAR BOULEVARD & #702 HARVARD AVENUE)

WE THE UNDERSIGNED OWNERS OF THE TRACT OF LAND PLATTED AND FURTHER DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING
SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE HAVE CAUSED THE SAME TO BE SURVEYED AND SUBDIVIDED IN THE MANNER SHOWN ON THIS
PLAT, WHICH SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER BE KNOWN AS THE:

"UNIVERSITY CITY GOVERNMENT BUILDING "

THE BUILDING LINES AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE HEREBY ESTABLISHED.

ALL EXISTING EASEMENTS ARE SHOWN.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, WE HAVE HEREUNTO SET OUR HANDS THIS _____________ DAY OF __________________ 2024.

CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY

BY(SIGNATURE):_________________________________

               (PRINT):_________________________________

                  TITLE:_________________________________

   STATE OF MISSOURI )
                                        ) SS
COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS )

ON THIS __________DAY OF _______________ 2024, BEFORE ME APPEARED ________________________________, TO ME
PERSONALLY KNOWN, WHO BEING BY ME DULY SWORN DID SAY THAT HE/SHE IS THE ____________________________ OF THE
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, AND THAT SAID INSTRUMENT WAS SIGNED ON BEHALF OF SAID CORPORATE AND POLITICAL
SUBDIVISION.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY NOTARIAL SEAL AT MY OFFICE IN THE CITY OF ST.
LOUIS, MISSOURI, THE DAY AND YEAR LAST ABOVE WRITTEN.

___________________________________                   ________________________
NOTARY PUBLIC                                                             MY COMMISSION EXPIRES

CITY APPROVAL
WE, LaRETTE REESE, CITY CLERK AND JOHN WAGNER, DIRECTOR OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT FOR THE CITY OF
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE PLAT SHOWN, "UNIVERSITY CITY GOVERNMENT BUILDING", CITY
OF UNIVERSITY CITY, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL OF ST.
LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, BY ORDINANCE # 7189 ON THIS 8TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2022.

____________________________________________                   ____________________________________________
LaRETTE REESE, CITY CLERK                                                       JOHN WAGNER, DIRECTOR OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI                                          CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT AT THE REQUEST OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, WE HAVE DURING THE MONTH OF APRIL 2022,
EXECUTED A PROPERTY BOUNDARY SURVEY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CURRENT STANDARDS FOR PROPERTY BOUNDARY
SURVEYS AS ESTABLISHED BY THE MISSOURI BOARD FOR ARCHITECTS, PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS, AND PROFESSIONAL
LAND SURVEYORS AND IN A MANNER CONSISTENT WITH THE DEGREE OF CARE AND SKILL ORDINARILY EXERCISED BY
MEMBERS OF THE LAND SURVEYING PROFESSION CURRENTLY PRACTICING AND IN SIMILAR CIRCUMSTANCES, ON THE
TRACT OF LAND SHOWN AND DESCRIBED HEREON AND THAT THE RESULTS OF SAID SURVEY ARE REPRESENTED UPON THIS
PLAT. THIS SURVEY MEETS THE ACCURACY STANDARDS FOR AN URBAN PROPERTY AS DEFINED IN SAID STANDARDS.

CIVIL DESIGN INC. (CDI)
5220 OAKLAND AVENUE
ST LOUIS, MISSOURI 63110

____________________________________                       _________________
PHILIP A. GROUT, PLS-2010018902                                      DATE

ORIGINAL LOCATOR NUMBERS 18J620978, 18J621012 AND 18J621276
OWNER:
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY
6801 DELMAR BOULEVARD
ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI 63130
(314) 862-6767

GENERAL NOTES:
1. THIS PROPERTY CLASSIFIES AS AN URBAN SURVEY.
2. "R" DENOTES RECORD INFORMATION, "S" DENOTES MEASURED BY SURVEYOR, AND "C" DENOTES CALCULATED.
3. THIS PLAT OF SURVEY CONTAINS 240,404 SQ. FT. OR 5.5189 ACRES MORE OR LESS.
4. EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY STATED OR SHOWN ON THIS MAP, THIS SURVEY DOES NOT REFLECT ANY OF THE

FOLLOWING WHICH MAY BE APPLICABLE TO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY; EASEMENTS OTHER THAN POSSIBLE
EASEMENTS WHICH WERE VISIBLE AT THE TIME OF MAKING THIS SURVEY; BUILDING SETBACK LINES;
RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS; SUBDIVISION RESTRICTIONS; ZONING OR OTHER LAND USE REGULATIONS.

5. THIS BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT DOES NOT VACATE EXISTING EASEMENTS OR RIGHT OF WAY, NOR DOES IT
CREATE, GRANT OR ESTABLISH NEW EASEMENTS OR RIGHTS OF WAY.

6. A LAND DISTURBANCE PERMIT FOR ANY NEW CONSTRUCTION ON THIS SITE MAY BE REQUIRED.  BOUNDARY
ADJUSTMENT PLAT APPROVAL IS NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS APPROVAL OF A LAND  DISTURBANCE PERMIT.

CONTROL STATEMENT:
MISSOURI STATE PLANE COORDINATES, BEARINGS, AND ELEVATIONS HEREON THIS PROJECT WERE ESTABLISHED
UTILIZING THE MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION GLOBAL NAVIGATION SATELLITE REAL
TIME NETWORK FOR CONTINUOUS OPERATING REFERENCE STATIONS DURING THE MONTH OF APRIL 2022, AND ARE
BASED ON THE MISSOURI COORDINATE SYSTEM OF NAD1983, ZONE EAST, 2401, GRID NORTH, AND THE NORTH
AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM 1988 (NAVD 88).

SOURCE OF TITLE INFORMATION:
NO TITLE INSURANCE COMMITMENT WAS FURNISHED TO THE SURVEYOR; THEREFORE THERE MAY BE OTHER
EASEMENTS, COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS AFFECTING THE SUBJECT PROPERTY THAT ARE NOT SHOWN ON
THIS SURVEY.

ZONING INFORMATION:
THE AREA(S) SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE WITHIN ZONING DESIGNATION "MUNICIPAL" PER THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY
CITY ZONING MAP.

FEMA FLOOD ZONE INFORMATION:
FEMA  SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA ZONE "X" - ACCORDING TO THE NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM,
FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP FOR ST. LOUIS COUNTY (COMMUNITY #290390 PANEL #0216K), MISSOURI PER MAP NO.
29189C0216K WITH A REVISED DATE OF FEBRUARY 4, 2015.

MONUMENT STATEMENT:
PERMANENT MONUMENTS SHALL BE SET AT THE SUBDIVISION CORNERS AND SEMI-PERMANENT  MONUMENTS
SHALL BE SET AT THE INTERIOR LOT CORNERS UPON COMPLETION OF GRADING OR WITHIN 12 MONTHS OF THE
RECORDING OF THIS PLAT ACCORDING TO 10 CSR 30-2.080 (DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ORIGINAL SURVEYS).

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

#601 TRINITY AVENUE (BOOK 23272, PAGE 292)

PART OF BLOCK 4 OF UNIVERSITY HEIGHTS A SUBDIVISION ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN
PLAT BOOK 6 PAGE 14 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDS LOCATED IN U.S. SURVEY 378, TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH,
RANGE 6 EAST OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, UNIVERSITY CITY, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, BEING MORE
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF A TRACT OF LAND AS CONVEYED TO THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, BY
INSTRUMENT RECORDED IN BOOK 1088, PAGE 113 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDS, SAID POINT BEING
LOCATED ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SGT. MIKE KING DRIVE, 50 FEET WIDE, 372.00 FEET DISTANT NORTH
OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF DELMAR BOULEVARD, 80 FEET WIDE; THENCE
ALONG THE NORTHERN LINES OF SAID UNIVERSITY CITY TRACT THE FOLLOWING COURSES AND DISTANCES: NORTH
89 DEGREES 45 MINUTES 44 SECONDS WEST, 139.00 FEET; NORTH 00 DEGREES 14 MINUTES 16 SECONDS EAST,
50.00 FEET, TO A FOUND IRON PIPE, AND NORTH 89 DEGREES 45 MINUTES 44 SECONDS WEST, 146.05 FEET TO A
FOUND IRON PIPE LOCATED ON THE EASTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TRINITY AVENUE, 50 FEET WIDE, SAID POINT
ALSO BEING LOCATED ON A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 435.08 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND ALONG SAID CURVE WITH AN ARC LENGTH OF 12.76 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS
NORTH 10 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 50 SECONDS EAST, 12.76 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE TO
THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 270.13 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID CURVE WITH AN ARC LENGTH OF 383.00 FEET,
AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS NORTH 52 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 18 SECONDS EAST, 351.71 FEET THE BEGINNING OF A
NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 385.40 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID CURVE WITH AN ARC
LENGTH OF 5.17 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS SOUTH 86 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 18 SECONDS EAST, 5.17 FEET
TO ITS INTERSECTION WITH THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ABOVE SAID SGT. MIKE KING DRIVE; THENCE ALONG
SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, SOUTH 00 DEGREES 14 MINUTES 16 SECONDS WEST, 278.31 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING.

PHILIP A. GROUT

NUMBER
PLS-2010018902

MISSOURI
land surveying

corporation
license number:

2011020042



"UNIVERSITY HEIGHTS"PLAT BOOK 06 PAGE 14

BLOCK 4

D
E

L
M

A
R

 G
A

R
D

E
N

P
L

A
T

 B
O

O
K

 1
1 

P
A

G
E

 4
2

BLOCK 1

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 C

IT
Y

68
01

 D
EL

M
A

R
 B

O
U

LE
VA

R
D

 S
T.

 L
O

U
IS

, M
IS

SO
U

R
I 6

31
30

NOT TO SCALE

SYMBOLS &
ABBREVIATIONS:

LO
T 

C
O

N
SO

LI
D

A
TI

O
N

PL
A

T

LOT CONSOLIDATION PLAT OF

"UNIVERSITY CITY GOVERNMENT BUILDING"
PART OF BLOCKS 1 & 4 OF "UNIVERSITY HEIGHTS"

ALONG WITH PART OF SGT. MIKE KING DRIVE
U.S. SURVEY 378, TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 6 EAST, 5TH P.M.

UNIVERSITY CITY, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI

ORIGINAL LOCATOR NUMBERS 18J620978, 18J621012 AND 18J621276
OWNER:
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY
6801 DELMAR BOULEVARD
ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI 63130
(314) 862-6767

MISSOURI
land surveying

corporation
license number:

2011020042

PHILIP A. GROUT

NUMBER
PLS-2010018902



 

SUB-24-01 Minor Subdivision – 7111 Waterman Ave 
Page 1 of 2 

 

Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8500, Fax: (314) 862-3168 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Meeting Date March 27, 2023 

File Number SUB-24-01 

Council District 1 

Location 7111 Washington Avenue 

Applicant Pitzman’s Co. of Surveyors and Engineers (attn. William K. Berthold) 

Property Owner Laurent J. Torno, Jr. and Elizabeth G. Torno 

Request Minor Subdivision – Final Plat; subdivide existing lot into two lots 
 

 
Comprehensive Plan Conformance:  
[ X ] Yes  [  ] No      [  ] No reference 
 
Staff Recommendation:    
[ X ] Approval [  ] Approval with Conditions [  ] Denial 
 
Attachments: 

A. Application 
B. Owner Authorization  
C. Subdivision Plat 

 
 
Applicant Request 
The applicant’s request is to subdivide the existing single-family lot into two lots. Once subdivided, the 
applicant plans to remain in their home at 7111 Waterman Avenue and sell the new lot directly to the 
east (proposed address: 7109 Waterman Avenue) for a new single-family home to be built. The application 
is subject to Chapter 400, Zoning Code, and Chapter 405, Subdivision and Land Development Regulations 
of the University City Municipal Code. The application is being reviewed as a Minor Subdivision because 
the proposal does not meet any of the characteristics of a Major Subdivision as described in §405.165(A) 
and is therefore only required to go through the Final Plat process.  
 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning 
The subject property is located on the north side of Waterman Avenue between Williams Avenue and 
Wellesley Avenue. The property is zoned Single Family Residential (SR). Surrounding properties are also 
zoned SR, and adjacent land uses to the north, south, east, and west consist only of single-family homes. 
 
Analysis 
The subject property is zoned Single Family Residential District (SR) and is located within the West 
Portland Place subdivision (this is not a private subdivision). Section 400.1020 of the Zoning Code, “Lot 
Area and Width Exceptions,” establishes the minimum lot areas and minimum lot widths for subdivisions 
platted prior to the City's first Zoning Code in 1926. Per this section, properties in the West Portland Place 



 

SUB-24-01 Minor Subdivision – 7111 Waterman Ave 
Page 2 of 2 

subdivision shall have a minimum lot area of 5,100 square feet and a minimum lot width of 40 feet. 
 
Subdividing the subject property will result in two 37.5-foot-wide lots, each with 5,250 square feet of lot 
area. The proposed lot area complies with the requirement for West Portland Place. Because the 
proposed lot width of 37.5 feet is less than what is required by Section 400.1020, the applicant applied 
and was successfully approved for a variance by the Board of Adjustment on February 1, 2024.  
 
In addition, subdividing the lot will result in a side yard setback of 1.61 feet for the existing structure at 
7111 Waterman Avenue, less than the 5-foot minimum side yard setback. The applicant was also 
approved for a variance by the Board of Adjustment on February 1, 2024 for this deviation from the code 
standard. Both approvals were part of the same variance application (BOA-22-02). Any home built on the 
newly created lot at 7109 Waterman Avenue will be required to comply with all other zoning standards. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation 
The proposal meets all other Zoning Code and Subdivision Regulation requirements for a Final Plat.  Prior 
to any improvements to either of the proposed lots, the property owners will be required to obtain all 
applicable permits. 
 
Based on the preceding considerations, staff recommends approval of the Final Plat for the proposed 
Minor Subdivision. 







FOUND IRON PIPE
0.85' SOUTH

CORRECT

2 STORY
BRICK

2 1/2 STORY
BRICK

2 1/2 STORY
BRICK

BRICK
GARAGE LOT

 51
LOT
 50LOT 49LOT 48

LOT      47

LOT 46

ALLEY 15'w

N83°00'46"W 75.00'

N0
7°0

0'2
9"E

 14
0.0

0'

S0
7°0

0'2
9"W

 14
0.0

0'

S83°00'46"E 75.00'

N0
7°0

0'2
9"E

 14
0.0

0'

 37.50' 37.50'

 37.50'  37.50'

N/F
LAURENT J  &

ELIZABETH G TORNO
7111 WATERMAN BLVD

LOC. No. 18J240941
BOOK 6361 PAGE 316

LOT A
5,250 SQ. FT.
0.12 ACRES

LOT B
5,250 SQ. FT.
0.12 ACRES

S83°00'46"E 96.25' TO
WILLIAMS AVENUE

FOUND BENT IRON PIPE
1.04'SOUTH
CORRECT

FOUND MAG NAIL
0.80'SOUTH

CORRECT

FOUND IRON PIPE
1.03'SOUTH
CORRECT

FOUND CROSS
2.66'SOUTH / 0.12'EAST

SITE BENCHMARK
FOUND CROSS

2.31'SOUTH
0.20'  EAST

ELEV=556.36 WATERMAN AVENUE 60'w

SET IRON PIPE

SET IRON PIPE

P.O.B.
OVERALL

LOT B

BLOCK 2
WEST PORTLAND PLACE

P.B. 9 PG. 46

P.O.B. LOT A

BRICKWORK
29.33'NORTH
3.22'   EAST

BRICKWORK
70.55'SOUTH
 3.24'   EAST

BRICKWORK
29.24'NORTH
8.12'  WEST

BRICKWORK
70.56'SOUTH
8.09'  WEST

BRICKWORK
6.00'SOUTH
0.55'EAST

BRICKWORK
5.51'SOUTH

BRICKWORK
0.74'EAST

 37.50' 37.50' 37.50'  37.50'  36.25'

LOT 45

N

S

EW

Scale 1" = 20'

20 0 20

OUT-BOUNDARY LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION  LOT A:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION  LOT B:

CITY CERTIFICATION:

TORNO  SUBDIVISION 

TORNO  SUBDIVISION 

DEED DESCRIPTION (BOOK 6361 PAGE 316):

TITLE NOTES:

SURVEYORS NOTES:

 

TORNO SUBDIVISION

Pi
tz

m
an

's
 C

o.
of S

urv
ey

or
s &

 En
gin

ee
rs

27
25

 S
ut

to
n 

Bl
vd

.
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O
 6

31
43

p (3
14)

 781
-56

65 f (
314

) 78
1-1

801
w

w
w

.p
it

zm
an

s.
co

m

es
t.

 1
85

9

©

SHEET

LOCATOR #

TO
RN

O 
SU

BD
IVI

SIO
N

LO
TS

 48
, 4

9 A
ND

 PA
RT

 O
F L

OT
 47

 W
ES

T P
OR

TL
AN

D 
PL

AC
E

PL
AT

 BO
OK

 9 
PA

GE
 46

CI
TY

 O
F U

NI
VE

RS
ITY

 C
ITY

SA
IN

T L
OU

IS 
CO

UN
TY

, M
ISS

OU
RI

1 of 1

 18J240941

ST

ATE OF MI SSOUR I

REG
I ST ERED  LA ND  SURV EY

OR

WILLIAM K.
BERTHOLD
NUMBER
LS-2619

SEAL VALID ONLY WITH SIGNATURE.
WILLIAM K. BERTHOLD, REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR

LICENSE #: LS-2619

SURVEYORS & ENGINE
ER

S

PIT
ZMAN'S  CO.MISSOURI
CORPORATE

PROFESSIONAL
SURVEYOR

NO. 2007031036

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F RICHARD J BAUGH &  ELIZABETH M GEORGE  LOC. No. 18J240932 BOOK 10556 PAGE 459 7107 WATERMAN BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F CATHERINE H REILLY LOC. No. 18J240950 BOOK 21989 PAGE 560 7117 WATERMAN BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BLDG LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' BLDG LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' BLDG LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' BLDG LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.64'

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.69'

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BLDG LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' BLDG LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' BLDG LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' BLDG LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A PARCEL OF GROUND BEING ALL OF LOTS 48 AND 49 AND THE EASTERN 15 FEET, OF LOT 47, IN BLOCK 2, OF WEST PORTLAND PLACE, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9 PAGE 46, IN ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDERS OFFICE, IN UNIVERSITY CITY, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE NORTHERN LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, 60 FEET WIDE, WITH THE SOUTHEASTERN CORNER OF SAID LOT 49; THENCE NORTH 83 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 46 SECONDS WEST 75.00 FEET, ALONG THE NORTHERN LINE OF SAID WATERMAN AVENUE, TO A POINT BEING 15.00 FEET, WEST OF THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 47; THENCE NORTH 07 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 29 SECONDS EAST 140.00 FEET, ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH THE EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 47, TO A POINT, IN THE SOUTHERN LINE OF AN ALLEY, 15 FEET WIDE; THENCE SOUTH 83 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 46 SECONDS EAST 75.00 FEET, ALONG THE SOUTHERN LINE OF SAID ALLEY, TO THE NORTHEASTERN CORNER OF SAID LOT 49, TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 07 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST 140.00 FEET, ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE  SOUTH 07 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST 140.00 FEET, ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE SOUTH 07 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST 140.00 FEET, ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE  07 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST 140.00 FEET, ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE 07 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST 140.00 FEET, ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE  DEGREES 00 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST 140.00 FEET, ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE DEGREES 00 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST 140.00 FEET, ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE  00 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST 140.00 FEET, ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE 00 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST 140.00 FEET, ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE  MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST 140.00 FEET, ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST 140.00 FEET, ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE  29 SECONDS WEST 140.00 FEET, ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE 29 SECONDS WEST 140.00 FEET, ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE  SECONDS WEST 140.00 FEET, ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE SECONDS WEST 140.00 FEET, ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE  WEST 140.00 FEET, ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE WEST 140.00 FEET, ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE  140.00 FEET, ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE 140.00 FEET, ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE  FEET, ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE FEET, ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE  ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE ALONG EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE  EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE  LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE LINE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE  OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE OF SAID LOT 49 TO THE  SAID LOT 49 TO THE SAID LOT 49 TO THE  LOT 49 TO THE LOT 49 TO THE  49 TO THE 49 TO THE  TO THE TO THE  THE THE NORTHERN LINE OF SAID WATERMAN AVENUE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY  LINE OF SAID WATERMAN AVENUE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY LINE OF SAID WATERMAN AVENUE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY  OF SAID WATERMAN AVENUE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY OF SAID WATERMAN AVENUE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY  SAID WATERMAN AVENUE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY SAID WATERMAN AVENUE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY  WATERMAN AVENUE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY WATERMAN AVENUE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY  AVENUE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY AVENUE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY  TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY  THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY  POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY  OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY  BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY  AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY AND CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY  CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY CONTAINING 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY  10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY 10,500 SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY  SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY SQUARE FEET AS PREPARED BY  FEET AS PREPARED BY FEET AS PREPARED BY  AS PREPARED BY AS PREPARED BY  PREPARED BY PREPARED BY  BY BY PITZMAN'S COMPANY. THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT WE HAVE COMPLETED A BOUNDARY SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON,  IS TO CERTIFY THAT WE HAVE COMPLETED A BOUNDARY SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON, IS TO CERTIFY THAT WE HAVE COMPLETED A BOUNDARY SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON,  TO CERTIFY THAT WE HAVE COMPLETED A BOUNDARY SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON, TO CERTIFY THAT WE HAVE COMPLETED A BOUNDARY SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON,  CERTIFY THAT WE HAVE COMPLETED A BOUNDARY SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON, CERTIFY THAT WE HAVE COMPLETED A BOUNDARY SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON,  THAT WE HAVE COMPLETED A BOUNDARY SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON, THAT WE HAVE COMPLETED A BOUNDARY SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON,  WE HAVE COMPLETED A BOUNDARY SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON, WE HAVE COMPLETED A BOUNDARY SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON,  HAVE COMPLETED A BOUNDARY SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON, HAVE COMPLETED A BOUNDARY SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON,  COMPLETED A BOUNDARY SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON, COMPLETED A BOUNDARY SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON,  A BOUNDARY SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON, A BOUNDARY SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON,  BOUNDARY SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON, BOUNDARY SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON,  SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON, SURVEY AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON,  AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON, AND SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON,  SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON, SUBDIVISION PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON,  PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON, PLAT OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON,  OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON, OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON,  THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON, THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON,  PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON, PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON,  SHOWN HEREON, SHOWN HEREON,  HEREON, HEREON, AND THAT THE RESULTS ARE CORRECTLY SHOWN ON THIS PLAT. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI  THAT THE RESULTS ARE CORRECTLY SHOWN ON THIS PLAT. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI THAT THE RESULTS ARE CORRECTLY SHOWN ON THIS PLAT. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI  THE RESULTS ARE CORRECTLY SHOWN ON THIS PLAT. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI THE RESULTS ARE CORRECTLY SHOWN ON THIS PLAT. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI  RESULTS ARE CORRECTLY SHOWN ON THIS PLAT. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI RESULTS ARE CORRECTLY SHOWN ON THIS PLAT. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI  ARE CORRECTLY SHOWN ON THIS PLAT. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI ARE CORRECTLY SHOWN ON THIS PLAT. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI  CORRECTLY SHOWN ON THIS PLAT. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI CORRECTLY SHOWN ON THIS PLAT. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI  SHOWN ON THIS PLAT. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI SHOWN ON THIS PLAT. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI  ON THIS PLAT. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI ON THIS PLAT. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI  THIS PLAT. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI THIS PLAT. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI  PLAT. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI PLAT. THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI  THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI THIS SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI  SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI SURVEY WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI  WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI WAS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI  PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI  IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI  ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI ACCORDANCE WITH THE MISSOURI  WITH THE MISSOURI WITH THE MISSOURI  THE MISSOURI THE MISSOURI  MISSOURI MISSOURI MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR PROPERTY BOUNDARY FOR "URBAN" SURVEYS (10 CSR 30-2.070). IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I HAVE SIGNED & SEALED THE FOREGOING MAY 15, 2018 WILLIAM K. BERTHOLD, MoPLS 2619 PITZMAN'S CO. OF SURVEYORS & ENGINEERS  CORPORATE LICENSE NO. 2007031036 #2725-R SUTTON BOULEVARD SAINT LOUIS, MISSOURI  63143 T: 314-781-5665 E: BILLB@PITZMANS.COM REVISED CHANGED DATES NOV. 16, 2021 REVISED ADDED PORCH OCT 25, 2022 REVISED ADDED TIES JAN. 26, 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
A PARCEL OF GROUND BEING PART OF LOTS 47 AND 48, IN BLOCK 2, OF WEST PORTLAND PLACE, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9 PAGE 46, IN ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDERS OFFICE, IN UNIVERSITY CITY, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE NORTHERN LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, 60 FEET WIDE, WITH A POINT BEING 15.00 FEET WEST OF THE SOUTHEASTERN CORNER OF SAID LOT 47; THENCE NORTH 07 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 29 SECONDS EAST 140.00 FEET, ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH THE EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 47, TO A POINT IN THE SOUTHERN LINE OF AN ALLEY, 15 FEET WIDE; THENCE SOUTH 83 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 46 SECONDS EAST 37.50 FEET, ALONG THE SOUTHERN LINE OF SAID ALLEY, TO A POINT BEING 7.50 FEET, WEST OF THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 48; THENCE SOUTH 07 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST 140.00 FEET, ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH THE EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 48, TO A POINT IN THE NORTHERN LINE OF SAID WATERMAN AVENUE; THENCE NORTH 83 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 46 SECONDS WEST 37.50 FEET, ALONG THE NORTHERN LINE OF SAID WATERMAN AVENUE, TO A POINT BEING 15.00 FEET WEST OF THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 47 TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 5,250 SQUARE FEET OR 0.12 ACRES AS PREPARED BY PITZMAN'S COMPANY. A PARCEL OF GROUND BEING ALL OF LOT 49 AND PART OF LOT 48, IN BLOCK 2, OF WEST PORTLAND PLACE, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9 PAGE 46, IN ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDERS OFFICE, IN UNIVERSITY CITY, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE NORTHERN LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, 60 FEET WIDE, WITH THE SOUTHEASTERN CORNER OF SAID LOT 49; THENCE NORTH 83 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 46 SECONDS WEST 37.50 FEET, ALONG THE NORTHERN LINE OF SAID WATERMAN AVENUE, TO A POINT BEING 7.50 FEET WEST OF THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 48. THENCE NORTH 07 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 29 SECONDS EAST 140.00 FEET, ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH THE EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 48, TO A POINT IN THE SOUTHERN LINE OF AN ALLEY 15 FEET WIDE; THENCE SOUTH 83 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 46 SECONDS EAST 37.50 FEET, ALONG THE SOUTHERN LINE OF SAID ALLEY, TO THE NORTHEASTERN CORNER OF SAID LOT 49, TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 07 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST 140.00 FEET, ALONG THE EASTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 49, TO THE NORTHERN LINE OF SAID WATERMAN AVENUE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 5,250 SQUARE FEET OR 0.12 ACRES AS PREPARED BY PITZMAN'S COMPANY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED THAT THE TORNO  SUBDIVISION HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY,  IS HEREBY CERTIFIED THAT THE TORNO  SUBDIVISION HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, IS HEREBY CERTIFIED THAT THE TORNO  SUBDIVISION HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY,  HEREBY CERTIFIED THAT THE TORNO  SUBDIVISION HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, HEREBY CERTIFIED THAT THE TORNO  SUBDIVISION HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY,  CERTIFIED THAT THE TORNO  SUBDIVISION HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, CERTIFIED THAT THE TORNO  SUBDIVISION HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY,  THAT THE TORNO  SUBDIVISION HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, THAT THE TORNO  SUBDIVISION HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY,  THE TORNO  SUBDIVISION HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, THE TORNO  SUBDIVISION HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY,  TORNO  SUBDIVISION HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY,  BEEN APPROVED BY THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, BEEN APPROVED BY THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY,  APPROVED BY THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, APPROVED BY THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY,  BY THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, BY THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY,  THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY,  CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY,  OF UNIVERSITY CITY, OF UNIVERSITY CITY,  UNIVERSITY CITY, UNIVERSITY CITY,  CITY, CITY, MISSOURI PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ON THE ___ DAY OF______________, 2024. SIGN:  ________________________________ ________________________________ PRINT: ________________________________ ________________________________ TITLE: CHAIRMAN, PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION CHAIRMAN, PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION THE TORNO  SUBDIVISION HAS BEEN APPROVED IN CONFORMANCE WITH SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF  TORNO  SUBDIVISION HAS BEEN APPROVED IN CONFORMANCE WITH SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF HAS BEEN APPROVED IN CONFORMANCE WITH SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF  BEEN APPROVED IN CONFORMANCE WITH SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF BEEN APPROVED IN CONFORMANCE WITH SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF  APPROVED IN CONFORMANCE WITH SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF APPROVED IN CONFORMANCE WITH SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF  IN CONFORMANCE WITH SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF IN CONFORMANCE WITH SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF  CONFORMANCE WITH SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF CONFORMANCE WITH SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF  WITH SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF WITH SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF  SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF  REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF  OF THE CITY OF OF THE CITY OF  THE CITY OF THE CITY OF  CITY OF CITY OF  OF OF UNIVERSITY CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY  CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY  CODE OF ORDINANCES BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY  OF ORDINANCES BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY OF ORDINANCES BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY  ORDINANCES BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY ORDINANCES BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY  BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY  THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY  CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY  COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY  OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY  THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY  CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY  OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY  UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY  CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY CITY, MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY  MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY MISSOURI ON THE ____ DAY  ON THE ____ DAY ON THE ____ DAY  THE ____ DAY THE ____ DAY  ____ DAY ____ DAY  DAY DAY OF__________________,  2024, AS RECORDED IN ORDINANCE NO. ______________. SIGN:  ________________________________  BY:  ________________________________ ________________________________  BY:  ________________________________ BY:  ________________________________ ________________________________ PRINT: ________________________________  PRINT: ________________________________ ________________________________  PRINT: ________________________________ PRINT: ________________________________ ________________________________ TITLE: MAYOR, CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY    TITLE: CITY CLERK MAYOR, CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY    TITLE: CITY CLERK TITLE: CITY CLERK CITY CLERK A LOT 0F GROUND HAVING A FRONT OF 75 FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT  LOT 0F GROUND HAVING A FRONT OF 75 FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT LOT 0F GROUND HAVING A FRONT OF 75 FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT  0F GROUND HAVING A FRONT OF 75 FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT 0F GROUND HAVING A FRONT OF 75 FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT  GROUND HAVING A FRONT OF 75 FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT GROUND HAVING A FRONT OF 75 FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT  HAVING A FRONT OF 75 FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT HAVING A FRONT OF 75 FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT  A FRONT OF 75 FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT A FRONT OF 75 FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT  FRONT OF 75 FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT FRONT OF 75 FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT  OF 75 FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT OF 75 FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT  75 FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT 75 FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT  FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT  ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT  THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT  NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT  LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT  OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT  WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT WATERMAN AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT  AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT AVENUE, BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT  BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT BEING THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT  THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT THE EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT  EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT EASTERN 15 FEET OF LOT  15 FEET OF LOT 15 FEET OF LOT  FEET OF LOT FEET OF LOT  OF LOT OF LOT  LOT LOT NUMBER FOURTY-SEVEN (47) AND ALL OF LOTS FORTY EIGHT (48) AND FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST  FOURTY-SEVEN (47) AND ALL OF LOTS FORTY EIGHT (48) AND FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST FOURTY-SEVEN (47) AND ALL OF LOTS FORTY EIGHT (48) AND FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST  (47) AND ALL OF LOTS FORTY EIGHT (48) AND FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST (47) AND ALL OF LOTS FORTY EIGHT (48) AND FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST  AND ALL OF LOTS FORTY EIGHT (48) AND FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST AND ALL OF LOTS FORTY EIGHT (48) AND FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST  ALL OF LOTS FORTY EIGHT (48) AND FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST ALL OF LOTS FORTY EIGHT (48) AND FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST  OF LOTS FORTY EIGHT (48) AND FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST OF LOTS FORTY EIGHT (48) AND FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST  LOTS FORTY EIGHT (48) AND FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST LOTS FORTY EIGHT (48) AND FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST  FORTY EIGHT (48) AND FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST FORTY EIGHT (48) AND FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST  EIGHT (48) AND FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST EIGHT (48) AND FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST  (48) AND FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST (48) AND FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST  AND FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST AND FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST  FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST FORTY NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST  NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST NINE (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST  (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST (49) IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST  IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST IN BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST  BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST BLOCK NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST  NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST NUMBER TWO (2) OF "WEST  TWO (2) OF "WEST TWO (2) OF "WEST  (2) OF "WEST (2) OF "WEST  OF "WEST OF "WEST  "WEST "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", AS DESIGNATED AND LAID DOWN ON THE PLAT OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF  PLACE", AS DESIGNATED AND LAID DOWN ON THE PLAT OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF PLACE", AS DESIGNATED AND LAID DOWN ON THE PLAT OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF  AS DESIGNATED AND LAID DOWN ON THE PLAT OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF AS DESIGNATED AND LAID DOWN ON THE PLAT OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF  DESIGNATED AND LAID DOWN ON THE PLAT OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF DESIGNATED AND LAID DOWN ON THE PLAT OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF  AND LAID DOWN ON THE PLAT OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF AND LAID DOWN ON THE PLAT OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF  LAID DOWN ON THE PLAT OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF LAID DOWN ON THE PLAT OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF  DOWN ON THE PLAT OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF DOWN ON THE PLAT OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF  ON THE PLAT OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF ON THE PLAT OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF  THE PLAT OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE PLAT OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF  PLAT OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF PLAT OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF  OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF  OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF  SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF SAID "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF  "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF "WEST PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF  PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF PORTLAND PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF  PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF PLACE", FILED IN THE OFFICE OF  FILED IN THE OFFICE OF FILED IN THE OFFICE OF  IN THE OFFICE OF IN THE OFFICE OF  THE OFFICE OF THE OFFICE OF  OFFICE OF OFFICE OF  OF OF THE RECORDER OF DEEDS OF ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI ON THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9,  RECORDER OF DEEDS OF ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI ON THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9, RECORDER OF DEEDS OF ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI ON THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9,  OF DEEDS OF ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI ON THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9, OF DEEDS OF ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI ON THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9,  DEEDS OF ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI ON THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9, DEEDS OF ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI ON THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9,  OF ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI ON THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9, OF ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI ON THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9,  ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI ON THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI ON THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9,  LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI ON THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9, LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI ON THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9,  COUNTY, MISSOURI ON THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9, COUNTY, MISSOURI ON THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9,  MISSOURI ON THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9, MISSOURI ON THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9,  ON THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9, ON THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9,  THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9, THE 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9,  26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9, 26TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9,  DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9, DAY OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9,  OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9, OF AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9,  AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9, AUGUST, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9,  1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9, 1908, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9,  AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9, AND RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9,  RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 9,  IN PLAT BOOK 9, IN PLAT BOOK 9,  PLAT BOOK 9, PLAT BOOK 9,  BOOK 9, BOOK 9,  9, 9, AT PAGE 46, HAVING AN AGGREGATE FRONT OF SEVENTY FIVE (75) FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH  PAGE 46, HAVING AN AGGREGATE FRONT OF SEVENTY FIVE (75) FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH PAGE 46, HAVING AN AGGREGATE FRONT OF SEVENTY FIVE (75) FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH  46, HAVING AN AGGREGATE FRONT OF SEVENTY FIVE (75) FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH 46, HAVING AN AGGREGATE FRONT OF SEVENTY FIVE (75) FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH  HAVING AN AGGREGATE FRONT OF SEVENTY FIVE (75) FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH HAVING AN AGGREGATE FRONT OF SEVENTY FIVE (75) FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH  AN AGGREGATE FRONT OF SEVENTY FIVE (75) FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH AN AGGREGATE FRONT OF SEVENTY FIVE (75) FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH  AGGREGATE FRONT OF SEVENTY FIVE (75) FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH AGGREGATE FRONT OF SEVENTY FIVE (75) FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH  FRONT OF SEVENTY FIVE (75) FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH FRONT OF SEVENTY FIVE (75) FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH  OF SEVENTY FIVE (75) FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH OF SEVENTY FIVE (75) FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH  SEVENTY FIVE (75) FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH SEVENTY FIVE (75) FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH  FIVE (75) FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH FIVE (75) FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH  (75) FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH (75) FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH  FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH FEET ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH  ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH ON THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH  THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH THE NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH  NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH NORTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH  LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH LINE OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH  OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH OF WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH  WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH WATERMAN AVENUE, BY A DEPTH  AVENUE, BY A DEPTH AVENUE, BY A DEPTH  BY A DEPTH BY A DEPTH  A DEPTH A DEPTH  DEPTH DEPTH NORTHWARDLY OF ONE HUNDRED FORTY (140) FEET, TO A PUBLIC ALLEY; TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED  OF ONE HUNDRED FORTY (140) FEET, TO A PUBLIC ALLEY; TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED OF ONE HUNDRED FORTY (140) FEET, TO A PUBLIC ALLEY; TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED  ONE HUNDRED FORTY (140) FEET, TO A PUBLIC ALLEY; TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED ONE HUNDRED FORTY (140) FEET, TO A PUBLIC ALLEY; TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED  HUNDRED FORTY (140) FEET, TO A PUBLIC ALLEY; TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED HUNDRED FORTY (140) FEET, TO A PUBLIC ALLEY; TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED  FORTY (140) FEET, TO A PUBLIC ALLEY; TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED FORTY (140) FEET, TO A PUBLIC ALLEY; TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED  (140) FEET, TO A PUBLIC ALLEY; TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED (140) FEET, TO A PUBLIC ALLEY; TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED  FEET, TO A PUBLIC ALLEY; TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED FEET, TO A PUBLIC ALLEY; TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED  TO A PUBLIC ALLEY; TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED TO A PUBLIC ALLEY; TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED  A PUBLIC ALLEY; TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED A PUBLIC ALLEY; TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED  PUBLIC ALLEY; TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED PUBLIC ALLEY; TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED  ALLEY; TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED ALLEY; TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED  TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED TOGETHER WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED  WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED WITH ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED  ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED ALL THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED  THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED THE IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED  IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED  SITUATED SITUATED THEREON AND KNOWN AS AND NUMBERED 7111 WATERMAN AVENUE. 1. SOURCE OF TITLE:  NO TITLE WAS PROVIDED AT TIME OF SURVEY. SOURCE OF TITLE:  NO TITLE WAS PROVIDED AT TIME OF SURVEY.  NO TITLE WAS PROVIDED AT TIME OF SURVEY. 2. EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY STATED OR SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY STATED OR SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE  AS SPECIFICALLY STATED OR SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE AS SPECIFICALLY STATED OR SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE  SPECIFICALLY STATED OR SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE SPECIFICALLY STATED OR SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE  STATED OR SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE STATED OR SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE  OR SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE OR SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE  SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE  ON THIS PLAT, THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE ON THIS PLAT, THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE  THIS PLAT, THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE THIS PLAT, THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE  PLAT, THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE PLAT, THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE  THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE  SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE SURVEY DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE  DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE DOES NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE  NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE NOT PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE  PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE PURPORT TO REFLECT ANY OF THE  TO REFLECT ANY OF THE TO REFLECT ANY OF THE  REFLECT ANY OF THE REFLECT ANY OF THE  ANY OF THE ANY OF THE  OF THE OF THE  THE THE FOLLOWING WHICH MAY BE APPLICABLE TO THE SUBJECT REAL ESTATE: EASEMENTS, OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH  WHICH MAY BE APPLICABLE TO THE SUBJECT REAL ESTATE: EASEMENTS, OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH WHICH MAY BE APPLICABLE TO THE SUBJECT REAL ESTATE: EASEMENTS, OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH  MAY BE APPLICABLE TO THE SUBJECT REAL ESTATE: EASEMENTS, OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH MAY BE APPLICABLE TO THE SUBJECT REAL ESTATE: EASEMENTS, OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH  BE APPLICABLE TO THE SUBJECT REAL ESTATE: EASEMENTS, OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH BE APPLICABLE TO THE SUBJECT REAL ESTATE: EASEMENTS, OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH  APPLICABLE TO THE SUBJECT REAL ESTATE: EASEMENTS, OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH APPLICABLE TO THE SUBJECT REAL ESTATE: EASEMENTS, OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH  TO THE SUBJECT REAL ESTATE: EASEMENTS, OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH TO THE SUBJECT REAL ESTATE: EASEMENTS, OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH  THE SUBJECT REAL ESTATE: EASEMENTS, OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH THE SUBJECT REAL ESTATE: EASEMENTS, OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH  SUBJECT REAL ESTATE: EASEMENTS, OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH SUBJECT REAL ESTATE: EASEMENTS, OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH  REAL ESTATE: EASEMENTS, OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH REAL ESTATE: EASEMENTS, OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH  ESTATE: EASEMENTS, OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH ESTATE: EASEMENTS, OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH  EASEMENTS, OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH EASEMENTS, OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH  OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH OTHER THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH  THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH THAN POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH  POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH POSSIBLE EASEMENTS WHICH  EASEMENTS WHICH EASEMENTS WHICH  WHICH WHICH WERE VISIBLE AT THE TIME OF THE MAKING OF THIS SURVEY, BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION  VISIBLE AT THE TIME OF THE MAKING OF THIS SURVEY, BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION VISIBLE AT THE TIME OF THE MAKING OF THIS SURVEY, BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION  AT THE TIME OF THE MAKING OF THIS SURVEY, BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION AT THE TIME OF THE MAKING OF THIS SURVEY, BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION  THE TIME OF THE MAKING OF THIS SURVEY, BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION THE TIME OF THE MAKING OF THIS SURVEY, BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION  TIME OF THE MAKING OF THIS SURVEY, BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION TIME OF THE MAKING OF THIS SURVEY, BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION  OF THE MAKING OF THIS SURVEY, BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION OF THE MAKING OF THIS SURVEY, BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION  THE MAKING OF THIS SURVEY, BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION THE MAKING OF THIS SURVEY, BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION  MAKING OF THIS SURVEY, BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION MAKING OF THIS SURVEY, BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION  OF THIS SURVEY, BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION OF THIS SURVEY, BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION  THIS SURVEY, BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION THIS SURVEY, BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION  SURVEY, BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION SURVEY, BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION  BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION BUILDING SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION  SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION SETBACK LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION  LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION LINES, RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION  RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION  COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION COVENANTS, SUBDIVISION  SUBDIVISION SUBDIVISION RESTRICTIONS, ZONING OR OTHER LAND-USE REGULATIONS, AND ANY OTHER FACTS WHICH AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE  ZONING OR OTHER LAND-USE REGULATIONS, AND ANY OTHER FACTS WHICH AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE ZONING OR OTHER LAND-USE REGULATIONS, AND ANY OTHER FACTS WHICH AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE  OR OTHER LAND-USE REGULATIONS, AND ANY OTHER FACTS WHICH AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE OR OTHER LAND-USE REGULATIONS, AND ANY OTHER FACTS WHICH AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE  OTHER LAND-USE REGULATIONS, AND ANY OTHER FACTS WHICH AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE OTHER LAND-USE REGULATIONS, AND ANY OTHER FACTS WHICH AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE  LAND-USE REGULATIONS, AND ANY OTHER FACTS WHICH AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE LAND-USE REGULATIONS, AND ANY OTHER FACTS WHICH AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE  REGULATIONS, AND ANY OTHER FACTS WHICH AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE REGULATIONS, AND ANY OTHER FACTS WHICH AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE  AND ANY OTHER FACTS WHICH AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE AND ANY OTHER FACTS WHICH AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE  ANY OTHER FACTS WHICH AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE ANY OTHER FACTS WHICH AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE  OTHER FACTS WHICH AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE OTHER FACTS WHICH AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE  FACTS WHICH AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE FACTS WHICH AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE  WHICH AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE WHICH AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE  AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE  ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE  AND CURRENT TITLE AND CURRENT TITLE  CURRENT TITLE CURRENT TITLE  TITLE TITLE SEARCH MAY DISCLOSE. 1. THE FIELD WORK WAS COMPLETED ON MAY 11, 2018.  THE FIELD WORK WAS COMPLETED ON MAY 11, 2018.  MAY 11, 2018.  .  2. BEARING BASIS:   STATE PLANE NORTH  GRID NORTH BEARING BASIS:   STATE PLANE NORTH  GRID NORTH   STATE PLANE NORTH  GRID NORTH STATE PLANE NORTH  GRID NORTH GRID NORTH STATION: SL 14   DATE: JUNE 2012 DATE: JUNE 2012 NORTH=1,028,295.90 (F)  EAST=871,182.79 (F)      EAST=871,182.79 (F)      3. PROPERTY ZONING: "SR" SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT PER THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY WEBSITE MARCH 26, 2018. PROPERTY ZONING: "SR" SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT PER THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY WEBSITE MARCH 26, 2018. 4. FLOOD RISK ZONING: SUBJECT PROPERTY, IS LOCATED ON THE LATEST FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY FLOOD RISK ZONING: SUBJECT PROPERTY, IS LOCATED ON THE LATEST FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY  RISK ZONING: SUBJECT PROPERTY, IS LOCATED ON THE LATEST FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY RISK ZONING: SUBJECT PROPERTY, IS LOCATED ON THE LATEST FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY  ZONING: SUBJECT PROPERTY, IS LOCATED ON THE LATEST FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY ZONING: SUBJECT PROPERTY, IS LOCATED ON THE LATEST FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY  SUBJECT PROPERTY, IS LOCATED ON THE LATEST FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY SUBJECT PROPERTY, IS LOCATED ON THE LATEST FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY  PROPERTY, IS LOCATED ON THE LATEST FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY PROPERTY, IS LOCATED ON THE LATEST FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY  IS LOCATED ON THE LATEST FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY IS LOCATED ON THE LATEST FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY  LOCATED ON THE LATEST FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY LOCATED ON THE LATEST FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY  ON THE LATEST FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY ON THE LATEST FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY  THE LATEST FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY THE LATEST FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY  LATEST FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY LATEST FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY  FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY  INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY INSURANCE RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY  RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY RATE MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY  MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY MAP OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY  OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY OF CITY OF UNIVERSITY  CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY OF UNIVERSITY  OF UNIVERSITY OF UNIVERSITY  UNIVERSITY UNIVERSITY CITY, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 29189C0214K DATED FEBRUARY 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE  ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 29189C0214K DATED FEBRUARY 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 29189C0214K DATED FEBRUARY 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE  LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 29189C0214K DATED FEBRUARY 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 29189C0214K DATED FEBRUARY 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE  COUNTY, MISSOURI COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 29189C0214K DATED FEBRUARY 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE COUNTY, MISSOURI COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 29189C0214K DATED FEBRUARY 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE  MISSOURI COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 29189C0214K DATED FEBRUARY 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE MISSOURI COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 29189C0214K DATED FEBRUARY 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE  COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 29189C0214K DATED FEBRUARY 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 29189C0214K DATED FEBRUARY 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE  PANEL NO. 29189C0214K DATED FEBRUARY 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE PANEL NO. 29189C0214K DATED FEBRUARY 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE  NO. 29189C0214K DATED FEBRUARY 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE NO. 29189C0214K DATED FEBRUARY 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE  29189C0214K DATED FEBRUARY 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE 29189C0214K DATED FEBRUARY 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE  DATED FEBRUARY 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE DATED FEBRUARY 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE  FEBRUARY 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE FEBRUARY 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE  04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE 04, 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE  2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE 2015, AS FURNISHED BY THE  AS FURNISHED BY THE AS FURNISHED BY THE  FURNISHED BY THE FURNISHED BY THE  BY THE BY THE  THE THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT. THE FEMA/FIRM INDICATES THAT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN  DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT. THE FEMA/FIRM INDICATES THAT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT. THE FEMA/FIRM INDICATES THAT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN  OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT. THE FEMA/FIRM INDICATES THAT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT. THE FEMA/FIRM INDICATES THAT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN  HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT. THE FEMA/FIRM INDICATES THAT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT. THE FEMA/FIRM INDICATES THAT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN  & URBAN DEVELOPMENT. THE FEMA/FIRM INDICATES THAT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN & URBAN DEVELOPMENT. THE FEMA/FIRM INDICATES THAT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN  URBAN DEVELOPMENT. THE FEMA/FIRM INDICATES THAT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN URBAN DEVELOPMENT. THE FEMA/FIRM INDICATES THAT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN  DEVELOPMENT. THE FEMA/FIRM INDICATES THAT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN DEVELOPMENT. THE FEMA/FIRM INDICATES THAT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN  THE FEMA/FIRM INDICATES THAT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN THE FEMA/FIRM INDICATES THAT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN  FEMA/FIRM INDICATES THAT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN FEMA/FIRM INDICATES THAT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN  INDICATES THAT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN INDICATES THAT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN  THAT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN THAT SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN  SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN SUBJECT PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN  PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN  IS LOCATED IN IS LOCATED IN  LOCATED IN LOCATED IN  IN IN ZONE "X", WHICH IS MINIMAL RISK AREAS OUTSIDE THE 2-PERCENT-ANNUAL-CHANCE FLOODPLAINS, AS DEFINED BY THE  "X", WHICH IS MINIMAL RISK AREAS OUTSIDE THE 2-PERCENT-ANNUAL-CHANCE FLOODPLAINS, AS DEFINED BY THE "X", WHICH IS MINIMAL RISK AREAS OUTSIDE THE 2-PERCENT-ANNUAL-CHANCE FLOODPLAINS, AS DEFINED BY THE  WHICH IS MINIMAL RISK AREAS OUTSIDE THE 2-PERCENT-ANNUAL-CHANCE FLOODPLAINS, AS DEFINED BY THE WHICH IS MINIMAL RISK AREAS OUTSIDE THE 2-PERCENT-ANNUAL-CHANCE FLOODPLAINS, AS DEFINED BY THE  IS MINIMAL RISK AREAS OUTSIDE THE 2-PERCENT-ANNUAL-CHANCE FLOODPLAINS, AS DEFINED BY THE IS MINIMAL RISK AREAS OUTSIDE THE 2-PERCENT-ANNUAL-CHANCE FLOODPLAINS, AS DEFINED BY THE  MINIMAL RISK AREAS OUTSIDE THE 2-PERCENT-ANNUAL-CHANCE FLOODPLAINS, AS DEFINED BY THE MINIMAL RISK AREAS OUTSIDE THE 2-PERCENT-ANNUAL-CHANCE FLOODPLAINS, AS DEFINED BY THE  RISK AREAS OUTSIDE THE 2-PERCENT-ANNUAL-CHANCE FLOODPLAINS, AS DEFINED BY THE RISK AREAS OUTSIDE THE 2-PERCENT-ANNUAL-CHANCE FLOODPLAINS, AS DEFINED BY THE  AREAS OUTSIDE THE 2-PERCENT-ANNUAL-CHANCE FLOODPLAINS, AS DEFINED BY THE AREAS OUTSIDE THE 2-PERCENT-ANNUAL-CHANCE FLOODPLAINS, AS DEFINED BY THE  OUTSIDE THE 2-PERCENT-ANNUAL-CHANCE FLOODPLAINS, AS DEFINED BY THE OUTSIDE THE 2-PERCENT-ANNUAL-CHANCE FLOODPLAINS, AS DEFINED BY THE  THE 2-PERCENT-ANNUAL-CHANCE FLOODPLAINS, AS DEFINED BY THE THE 2-PERCENT-ANNUAL-CHANCE FLOODPLAINS, AS DEFINED BY THE  2-PERCENT-ANNUAL-CHANCE FLOODPLAINS, AS DEFINED BY THE 2-PERCENT-ANNUAL-CHANCE FLOODPLAINS, AS DEFINED BY THE  FLOODPLAINS, AS DEFINED BY THE FLOODPLAINS, AS DEFINED BY THE  AS DEFINED BY THE AS DEFINED BY THE  DEFINED BY THE DEFINED BY THE  BY THE BY THE  THE THE NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM. 5. MONUMENTS TO BE AFTER THIS PLAT HAS BEEN APPROVED. MONUMENTS TO BE AFTER THIS PLAT HAS BEEN APPROVED. THE UNDERSIGNED OWNER OF THE PARCEL OF GROUND DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED  UNDERSIGNED OWNER OF THE PARCEL OF GROUND DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED UNDERSIGNED OWNER OF THE PARCEL OF GROUND DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED  OWNER OF THE PARCEL OF GROUND DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED OWNER OF THE PARCEL OF GROUND DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED  OF THE PARCEL OF GROUND DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED OF THE PARCEL OF GROUND DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED  THE PARCEL OF GROUND DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED THE PARCEL OF GROUND DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED  PARCEL OF GROUND DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED PARCEL OF GROUND DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED  OF GROUND DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED OF GROUND DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED  GROUND DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED GROUND DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED  DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED  IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED  THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED  FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED FOREGOING SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED  SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED  CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED CERTIFICATE, HAS CAUSED  HAS CAUSED HAS CAUSED  CAUSED CAUSED SAID PARCEL TO BE SURVEYED AND SUBDIVIDED IN THE MANNER AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER  PARCEL TO BE SURVEYED AND SUBDIVIDED IN THE MANNER AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER PARCEL TO BE SURVEYED AND SUBDIVIDED IN THE MANNER AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER  TO BE SURVEYED AND SUBDIVIDED IN THE MANNER AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER TO BE SURVEYED AND SUBDIVIDED IN THE MANNER AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER  BE SURVEYED AND SUBDIVIDED IN THE MANNER AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER BE SURVEYED AND SUBDIVIDED IN THE MANNER AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER  SURVEYED AND SUBDIVIDED IN THE MANNER AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER SURVEYED AND SUBDIVIDED IN THE MANNER AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER  AND SUBDIVIDED IN THE MANNER AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER AND SUBDIVIDED IN THE MANNER AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER  SUBDIVIDED IN THE MANNER AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER SUBDIVIDED IN THE MANNER AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER  IN THE MANNER AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER IN THE MANNER AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER  THE MANNER AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER THE MANNER AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER  MANNER AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER MANNER AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER  AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER  SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER  ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER ON THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER  THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER THIS PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER  PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER PLAT, AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER  AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER AND SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER  SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER SAID SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER  SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER  SHALL HEREAFTER SHALL HEREAFTER  HEREAFTER HEREAFTER TO BE KNOWN AS: "TORNO SUBDIVISION" " IN WITNESS WHEREOF, WE HAVE HEREUNTO SET OUR HAND THIS _______ DAY OF __________, 2024.                                                             __________ _____________________   ________________________________ _____________________   ________________________________ ________________________________    LAURENT J. TORNO, JR.           ELIZABETH G. TORNO      ELIZABETH G. TORNO STATE OF MISSOURI  } } }S.S. CITY/COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS } } ON THIS ___ DAY OF ___________, 2024, BEFORE ME APPEARED LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO  THIS ___ DAY OF ___________, 2024, BEFORE ME APPEARED LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO THIS ___ DAY OF ___________, 2024, BEFORE ME APPEARED LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO  ___ DAY OF ___________, 2024, BEFORE ME APPEARED LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO ___ DAY OF ___________, 2024, BEFORE ME APPEARED LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO  DAY OF ___________, 2024, BEFORE ME APPEARED LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO DAY OF ___________, 2024, BEFORE ME APPEARED LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO  OF ___________, 2024, BEFORE ME APPEARED LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO OF ___________, 2024, BEFORE ME APPEARED LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO  ___________, 2024, BEFORE ME APPEARED LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO ___________, 2024, BEFORE ME APPEARED LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO  2024, BEFORE ME APPEARED LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO 2024, BEFORE ME APPEARED LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO  BEFORE ME APPEARED LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO BEFORE ME APPEARED LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO  ME APPEARED LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO ME APPEARED LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO  APPEARED LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO APPEARED LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO  LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO LAURENT J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO  J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO J. TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO  TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO TORNO, JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO  JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO JR. & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO  & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO & ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO  ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO ELIZABETH G. TORNO TO  G. TORNO TO G. TORNO TO  TORNO TO TORNO TO  TO TO ME PERSONALLY KNOWN WHO BEING BY ME DULY SWORN, DID SAY THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE  PERSONALLY KNOWN WHO BEING BY ME DULY SWORN, DID SAY THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE PERSONALLY KNOWN WHO BEING BY ME DULY SWORN, DID SAY THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE  KNOWN WHO BEING BY ME DULY SWORN, DID SAY THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE KNOWN WHO BEING BY ME DULY SWORN, DID SAY THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE  WHO BEING BY ME DULY SWORN, DID SAY THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE WHO BEING BY ME DULY SWORN, DID SAY THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE  BEING BY ME DULY SWORN, DID SAY THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE BEING BY ME DULY SWORN, DID SAY THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE  BY ME DULY SWORN, DID SAY THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE BY ME DULY SWORN, DID SAY THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE  ME DULY SWORN, DID SAY THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE ME DULY SWORN, DID SAY THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE  DULY SWORN, DID SAY THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE DULY SWORN, DID SAY THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE  SWORN, DID SAY THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE SWORN, DID SAY THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE  DID SAY THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE DID SAY THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE  SAY THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE SAY THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE  THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE THAT THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE  THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE THEY ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE  ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE ARE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE  THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE  PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE PERSONS IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE  IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE  AND WHO EXECUTED THE AND WHO EXECUTED THE  WHO EXECUTED THE WHO EXECUTED THE  EXECUTED THE EXECUTED THE  THE THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT, AND ACKNOWLEDGED THAT THEY EXECUTED THE SAME AS THEIR FREE ACT AND DEED. IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE  TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE  WHEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE WHEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE  I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE  HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE  HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE  SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE  MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE  HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE  AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE  AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE  MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE  OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE  SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE SEAL IN THE CITY AND STATE  IN THE CITY AND STATE IN THE CITY AND STATE  THE CITY AND STATE THE CITY AND STATE  CITY AND STATE CITY AND STATE  AND STATE AND STATE  STATE STATE AFORESAID, THE DAY AND YEAR FIRST ABOVE WRITTEN. MY TERM EXPIRES: _____________   ________________________________ ________________________________ NOTARY PUBLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE PROFESSIONAL SEAL AND SIGNATURE APPLY ONLY TO THIS DOCUMENT TO WHICH THEY ARE AFFIXED.  THE PROFESSIONAL EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR ALL OTHER PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, ESTIMATES, REPORTS, OR OTHER DOCUMENTS OR INSTRUMENTS, RELATING TO OR INTENDED TO BE USED FOR ANY PART OR PARTS OF THE PROJECT TO WHICH THIS DOCUMENT REFERS. © COPYRIGHT 2021  COPYRIGHT 2021 2021 PITZMAN'S COMPANY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORDER#:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPUTY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B. OR F.P.#:

AutoCAD SHX Text
P:\2018 PITZMAN'S\18-344 TORNO - WATERMAN\3-Survey\18-344-SV-2024.dwg  Plotted Date: 3/15/24 Time: 9:54 AM  Plotted Date: 3/15/24 Time: 9:54 AM3/15/24 Time: 9:54 AM Time: 9:54 AM9:54 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
18-344SUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
#200

AutoCAD SHX Text
S T P

AutoCAD SHX Text
W K B

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY 15, 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
A K B



  
 

 
M E M O R A N D U M  

 

TO:  Plan Commission 

FROM:   Department of Planning & Development 

DATE:   March 27, 2024 

SUBJECT: Work Session: Proposed Synagogue at 8200-8206 Delmar Boulevard and 558, 564, and 
568 Mapleview Drive 

CC:  Gregory Rose, City Manager 
John Mulligan, City Attorney  

 
 

In a work session at the upcoming March 27, 2024 Plan Commission meeting, Agudas Israel of St. Louis 
Synagogue will present plans to build a new synagogue located at 8200 Delmar Boulevard. Agudas Israel 
has been at this location since 1989. The existing building on the property was originally designed for 
retail and was renovated to become a synagogue. The proposed new synagogue will include a main 
sanctuary, small chapel, social hall for receptions following Sabbath morning services, and support 
spaces (offices, storage, classrooms, etc.). The primary use is the main sanctuary, and the applicants 
have explained that the other spaces will not be used at the same time as the main sanctuary. 
 
The work session is intended to allow Agudas Israel to introduce their proposal and obtain feedback 
from the Plan Commission prior to submitting an official application. The proposed development will 
include applications for Map Amendment (rezoning), Conditional Use Permit, and Major Subdivision (lot 
consolidation). They plan to present these applications at the April 17, 2024 Plan Commission meeting.  
 
Staff has been working with the Agudas Israel development group to provide guidance on the process 
and advise on code-related questions. Staff has completed a preliminary review of the proposed 
development and does not currently have any major concerns. A potential concern is complying with 
the City’s parking requirements. The applicants propose an off-street parking area with 38 parking 
spaces (including two accessible spaces). The code requires 70 spaces, with potential reductions down 
to 49 required spaces. To cover this gap, the applicants are working on shared parking agreements with 
neighboring property owners. In addition, the applicants plan to approach St. Louis County to explore 
possible pedestrian safety improvements at the Delmar & Old Bonhomme intersection. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Applicant Narrative 
2. Preliminary Site Plan 

 

PLAN COMMISSION 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 



 conditional use permit memo 

DATE: March 2024 CLIENT NAME: Agudas Israel of St. Louis 
ISSUED BY: Rami Berner, BAS PROJECT NAME: New Building 
ISSUED TO: U City Plan Commission 

 

PROJECT NUMBER: 2203 

Background:  This memo is part of University City’s Conditional Use Permit Application for the Agudas 

Israel of St. Louis. 

Owner’s Agent 

Name:  Rami Berner, AIA     Berner Architecture Studio 

Phone: 216.502.6212 

 

Property Owner 

Name:  Agudas Israel of St. Louis 

Address : 8202 Delmar Blvd. 

University City, MO 63124 

Phone:  314.863.8978 

 Legal Description: 

A PARCEL OF GROUND BEING A PART OF LOTS 4, 5, 6, & 7, IN BLOCK 2, OF UNIVERSITY VIEW 

SUBDIVISION, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 19 PAGE 45, OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDER’S 

OFFICE, PART OF THE FORMER MAPLEVIEW DRIVE AND FORMER WESTVIEW DRIVE, 50 FEET 

WIDE, VACATED BY ORDINANCE 7028, RECORDED IN BOOK 22821 PAGE 343, IN THE ST. LOUIS 

COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE, IN UNIVERSITY CITY, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, MORE 

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; 

BEGINNING AT THE EASTERN LINE OF DELMAR BOULEVARD, 80.00 FEET WIDE WITH THE 

CENTERLINE OF SAID FORMER WESTVIEW DRIVE. 

THENCE SOUTH 82 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 03 SECONDS EAST 148.5 FEET, ALONG THE EASTERN 

LINE OF SAID DELMAR BOULEVARD, TO THE SOUTHERN LINE OF OLD BONHOMME ROAD, 

IRREGULAR WIDTH, TO A POINT; 

THENCE SOUTH 37 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 25 SECONDS EAST 279.73 FEET, ALONG THE SOUTHERN 

LINE OF SAID OLD BONHOMME ROAD, TO A POINT BEING 25.00 FEET EAST OF THE WESTERN LINE 

OF SAID LOT 4, TO A POINT; 

THENCE SOUTH 52 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 35 SECONDS WEST 130.00 FEET, ALONG A LINE 

PARALLEL WITH THE WESTERN LINE OF SAID LOT 4, TO A POINT IN THE NORTHERN LINE OF 

MAPLEVIEW DRIVE, 50 FEET WIDE; 

THENCE NORTH 37 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 25 SECONDS WEST 228.32 FEET, ALONG THE 

NORTHERN LINE OF SAID MAPLEVIEW DRIVE, TO THE WESTERN LINE OF WESTVIEW DRIVE, 

IRREGULAR WIDTH, TO A POINT; 



Conditional Use Permit Memo   
Agudas Israel of St. Louis 

27 March 2024 

Page 2 of 3 

  

 

THENCE NORTH 77 DEGREES 45 MINUTES 10 SECONDS WEST 92.64 FEET, ALONG THE WESTERN 

LINE OF SAID WESTVIEW DRIVE, TO THE CENTERLINE OF SAID FORMER WESTVIEW DRIVE, TO A 

POINT; 

THENCE NORTH 07 DEGREES 07 MINUTES 57 SECONDS EAST 119.73 FEET, ALONG THE 

CENTERLINE OF SAID FORMER WESTVIEW DRIVE, TO THE EASTERN LINE OF SAID DELMAR 

BOULEVARD TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 48,050 SQUARE FEET OR 1.10 

ACRES AS PREPARED BY PITZMAN’S COMPANY. 

Common Street Address: 8200-8206 Delmar Blvd.  25,300 SF (0.58 Acres) 

568 Mapleview Drive    6,500 SF   (0.15 Acres) 

564 Mapleview Drive        6,500 SF   (0.15 Acres)  

558 Mapleview Drive        9,750 SF   (0.22 Acres) 

   Total: 48,050 SF (1.10 Acres) 

Description of Proposed Conditional Use: 

Agudas Israel of St. Louis Synagogue was established in 1980. Since its initial membership of 10 

families, it has grown to over 170 member families.  From its initial location in a storefront just 

across Delmar, the Agudas Israel has been in its current location at 8202 Delmar since 1989.  Over 

the last 35 years as the opportunity arose to fill more space in the current building the Agudas 

Israel has expanded.  Today the Agudas Israel remains a vibrant and thriving congregation with 

almost all of its congregants, residents of University City and residing within a half mile radius. 

With the opportunity to purchase the empty lots to the south of the current location, Agudas 

Israel sees the potential to finally build a suitable space for its congregation designed to fit its 

needs, not compromised to fit into a renovated storefront.  Unlike the current location, the 

proposed building will be able to support its integral programming for the men and women, boys 

and girls that it serves.  

The program of this building will consist of the following primary spaces: Main Sanctuary, Small 

Chapel (for small weekday prayer services – see below), Social Hall for receptions following 

Sabbath morning services, and support spaces (offices, storage, classrooms etc.). 

As an Orthodox Jewish Synagogue, a typical weekday at Agudas Israel consists of early morning 

study groups, several consecutive morning services to accommodate different work schedules, 

small study groups throughout the day, afternoon and evening services, and evening study 

groups.  While the weekday occupancy of the building is relatively low, spread out throughout the 

day, and almost exclusively adult men, on Sabbath, specifically Saturday morning, men, women 

and children attend.  What is unique is that at these peak occupancy times, driving is not allowed 

and all congregants without exception walk to synagogue.  To illustrate this condition, we have 

included a log of a typical day’s attendance in this submittal. 

Employee/Staff that will regularly occupy the building is between 4-6 people. 

 



Conditional Use Permit Memo   
Agudas Israel of St. Louis 

27 March 2024 

Page 3 of 3 

  

 

Impact on the Community: 

As Agudas Israel is currently at this location and this project primarily seeks to remedy challenging 

overlap of uses rather than expansion, there will be no impact to traffic in either volume or peak 

hours.  Access to the site is proposed to be off of Old Bonhomme.  This is designed to remedy the 

current situation where drive access is unusually close to the intersection on both Old Bonhomme 

and Delmar and dangerous to both pedestrians and vehicles. Additionally, the proposed entrance 

on Old Bonhomme is entrance only and the exit is exit only further down Old Bonhomme in order 

to allow for the maximum stacking length at the traffic light for those traveling north on Old 

Bonhomme, avoiding traffic blocking etc. 

Typically the introduction of an Orthodox Synagogue increases property values significantly as the 

prohibition of using public or private transit on Sabbath requires congregants to walk, and thus 

requires them to live within a short walking distance. This condition makes housing close to the 

synagogue extremely desirable.  Additionally, this location is identified in the Comprehensive Plan 

as an "Activity Node" in which a place of worship is a secondary use.  The proposal seeks to 

reinforce Activity Node and puts the building close to the street edge re-enforcing the urban fabric 

and street experience. 

Additional Information: 

Parking Approach: 

Place of worship     1 space for every 3.5 seats in primary assembly room       

Primary assembly room = 3,660 sf 

Occupancy type: Assembly - tables and chairs 15 net sf / occupant 

3,660 sf / 15 = 244 seats 

 

Initial Space Calc: 244/3.5 = 70 spaces 

                                                        10% reduction for transit  

                                                       20% reduction for cup process due to unique usage type 

                                                   =   49 spaces 

  

Spaces provided onsite   =   38 spaces 

Shared parking spaces        =   12 spaces ( + 12 additional possible) 

                               Total     =   50 spaces ( + 12 additional possible) 

Lot Coverage: 

Lot Size:                  48,050 SF 

 

Building Footprint: 20,050 SF 

Parking:                  14,040 SF         

TOTAL:  34,090 = 70.9%  

 

Sidewalks:              2,761  SF 

Landscape:             11,199 SF          

TOTAL:   13,960 = 29.1% 

END OF MEMORANDUM 



AGUDAS ISRAEL OF ST. LOUIS

13 MARCH 2024

0' 5' 10' 20'

MAIN SANCTUARY

CHAPEL

CLASSROOM

SOCIAL HALL

COATS

KITCHEN

LOBBY

SERVICE
ENTRY

OFFICES



LOT 4 block 2

MAPLEVIEW DRIVE 50'w
(PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY)

OLD BONHOMME ROAD IRREG WIDTH
(PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY)

DELMAR BOULEVARD 80'
w

(PUBLIC
 RIGHT OF WAY - M

ODOT)

ZONED "SR"

WESTVIEW DRIVE 50'w

(PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY)

LOT 3 Block 5

LOT 5 Block 4LOT  6 LOT  4

university vew
pb 19 pg 45

LOT  1

LOT  2

ZONED "LC"

N/F
AGUDAS ISRAEL OF ST. LOUIS

8200 DELMAR BLVD
LOC. No. 18K531284

BOOK 8457 PAGE 284
PARCELS 1 & 2

ZONED "LC"

AREA
48,050 SQ FT
1.10 ACRES

S37°34'25"E 279.73'

S5
2°2

5'3
5"W

 13
0.0

0'

N37°34'25"W 228.32'

S82°
52'0

3"E
 148

.50'

N07°07'57"E 119.73' N77°45'10"W 92.64'

BUS STOP

SITE BENCHMARK
CUT "L" = 606.23

C/L FORMER
 WESTVIEW DRIVE

DNDN

13
10104

Scale:

0 40

1" = 20'

20

FRO
NTE

NAC
 EN

GIN
EER

ING
 GR

OUP
CIV

IL 
/ S

TR
UC

TU
RA

L /
 LA

ND
 SU

RV
EY

ING
27

25
 S

UT
TO

N
 B

LV
D

.
ST

. L
O

UI
S,

 M
IS

SO
UR

I  6
31

43
PH

O
N

E:
 (3

14
) 6

44
-2

20
0

w
w

w
.f

e-
st

l.
co

m
m

o
 c

e
r

t
if

ic
a

t
e

 o
f

 a
u

t
h

o
r

it
y

:
civ

il /
 str

uc
tu

ra
l en

gin
ee

rin
g: 0

01
22

5
l

a
n

d
 s

u
r

v
e

y
in

g
: 0

0
0

2
8

2

MSD #
MSD BASE MAP

©

MSD BENCHMARK:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

DAVID G. WELTON,  PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER
LICENSE #: PE-2009018804

22
03

49

SD
P1.

0SIT
E D

EV
EL

OP
ME

NT
 PL

AN

AG
UD

AS
 IS

RA
EL

 SY
NA

GO
GU

E
NE

W 
PA

RK
IN

G 
LO

T
82

02
 D

EL
MA

R 
BL

VD
.

UN
IVE

RS
ITY

 C
ITY

, S
T. 

LO
UI

S C
OU

NT
Y, 

MO
. 6

31
24

P
R

E
L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

?
18K

38 = PARKING SPACES
2  = HANDICAP SPACES

SITE LOCATION

SITE LOCATION MAP

A

38

LOT COVERAGE
LOT SIZE:                48,050 SF

BUILDING:               20,050 SF
PARKING:                14,040 SF        
TOTAL:                     34,090 = 70.9% 

SIDEWALKS:            2,761  SF
LANDSCAPE:           11,199 SF         
TOTAL:                     13,960 = 29.1%

PARKING CALCULATION
PLACE OF WORSHIP     1 SPACE FOR EVERY 3.5 SEATS IN PRIMARY ASSEMBLY ROOM      

PRIMARY ASSEMBLY ROOM = 3,660 SF
OCCUPANCY TYPE: ASSEMBLY - TABLES AND CHAIRS 15 NET SF / OCCUPANT
3,660 SF / 15 = 244 SEATS
SPACES REQUIRED: 244 / 3.5 = 70 SPACES
                                                      10% REDUCTION FOR TRANSIT 
                                                      20% REDUCTION FOR CUP PROCESS DUE TO UNIQUE USAGE TYPE
                                                   =  49 SPACES

SPACES PROVIDED ONSITE  =  38 SPACES
SHARED PARKING SPACES   =  12 SPACES

                                    TOTAL   =  50 SPACES



SITE BENCHMARK
CUT "L" = 606.23

LOT 7 LOT      6 LOT  5
LOT 4
blk 2

MAPLEVIEW DRIVE 50'w
(PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY)

OLD BONHOMME ROAD IRREG WIDTH
(PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY)

DELMAR BOULEVARD 80'
w

(PUBLIC
 RIGHT OF WAY - M

ODOT)

ZONED "SR"

WESTVIEW DRIVE 50'w

(PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY)

LOT 3
BLK 5

LOT 5
BLK 4

LOT  6 LOT  4

university
vew

pb 19 pg 45

LOT  1

LOT  2

ZONED "LC"

N/F
AGUDAS ISRAEL OF ST. LOUIS

564 MAPLEVIEW DRIVE
LOC. No. 18K530326

BOOK 25102 PAGE 2296
PARCEL 2

ZONED "SR"

N/F
AGUDAS ISRAEL OF ST. LOUIS

8200 DELMAR BLVD
LOC. No. 18K531284

BOOK 8457 PAGE 284
PARCELS 1 & 2

ZONED "LC"

N/F
AGUDAS ISRAEL OF ST. LOUIS

558 MAPLEVIEW DRIVE
LOC. No. 18K530294

BOOK 25102 PAGE 2296
PARCEL 1

ZONED "SR"

N/F
AGUDAS ISRAEL OF ST. LOUIS

568 MAPLEVIEW DRIVE
LOC. No. 18K530348

BOOK 25102 PAGE 2296
PARCEL 3

ZONED "LC"

S37°34'25"E 279.73'

S5
2°2

5'3
5"W

 13
0.0

0'

N37°34'25"W 228.32'

C/L F
ORMER

 WESTVIEW DRIVE

FORMER MAPLEVIEW DRIVE &

FORMER WESTVIEW DRIVE

VAC BY ORD 702
8

BK. 22
821

 PAGE 343

FOUND IRON ROD
CORRECT CORRECT

FOUND IRON ROD
CORRECT CORRECT

FOUND CROSS
CORRECT 0.90'EAST

FOUND IRON PIPE
CORRECT N/SFOUND IRON ROD

CORRECT N/S
FOUND IRON PIPE
CORRECT N/S

FOUND IRON PIPE
CORRECT N/S

FOUND IRON PIPE
CORRECT N/S

S82°
52'0

3"E
 148

.50'

POINT OF
BEGINNING
SET CROSS

N07°07'57"E 119.73' N77°45'10"W 92.64'

FOUND IRON ROD
CORRECT 52.99'WEST

FOUND IRON ROD
CORRECT 75.01'WEST

FOUND IRON PIPE
CORRECT 103.29'WESTFOUND IRON ROD

1.23'SOUTH 174.91'WEST
FOUND CROSS
CORRECT 124.84'WEST

FOUND IRON ROD
CORRECT 53.32'EAST

FOUND IRON ROD
CORRECT 124.90'WEST

FOUND IRON ROD
CORRECT 74.94'WESTFOUND IRON PIPE

0.40'NORTH 3.40'EAST

SET IRON ROD

FOUND IRON PIPE
CORRECT N/S

AREA
48,050 SQ FT
1.10 ACRES

POSSIBLE
PROPERTY

LIN
E

N

S
E

W

Scale 1" = 20'

20 0 20

SURVEYORS & ENGINE
ER

S

PIT
ZMAN'S  CO.MISSOURI
CORPORATE

PROFESSIONAL
SURVEYOR

NO. 2007031036

ST

ATE OF M I SSOURI

REG
I ST ERED  LA ND  SURVEY

OR

WILLIAM K.
BERTHOLD
NUMBER
LS-2619

SEAL VALID ONLY WITH SIGNATURE.
WILLIAM K. BERTHOLD, REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR

LICENSE #: LS-2619

SURVEYORS NOTES:

NEW LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

TO: FRONTENAC ENGINEERING:

SEPTEMBER 20, 2022

Pi
tz

m
an

's
 C

o.
of S

urv
ey

or
s &

 En
gin

ee
rs

27
25

 S
ut

to
n 

Bl
vd

.
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O
 6

31
43

p (3
14)

 781
-56

65
w

w
w

.p
it

zm
an

s.
co

m

es
t.

 1
85

9

©

SHEET

LOCATOR #

1 of 1

18K531284

MI
SS

OU
RI

 ST
AN

DA
RD

S
BO

UN
DA

RY
, IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

T &
 TO

PO
GR

AP
HI

CA
L S

UR
VE

Y
PA

RT
 O

F L
OT

S 4
, 5

, 6
 & 

7, 
IN

 BL
OC

K 2
 O

F U
NI

VE
RS

ITY
 VI

EW
 IN

 PL
AT

 BO
OK

 19
 PA

GE
 45

AN
D 

PA
RT

 O
F V

AC
AT

ED
 W

ES
TV

IEW
 D

RI
VE

, 5
0'w

 AN
D 

MA
PL

EV
IEW

 D
RI

VE
, 5

0'w
IN

 U
NI

VE
RS

ITY
 C

ITY
, S

T. 
LO

UI
S C

OU
NT

Y, 
MI

SS
OU

RI

NORTH FOR NOTES

LEGEND

TITLE NOTES:



ZONED "SR"

ZONED "LC"

N/F
AGUDAS ISRAEL OF ST. LOUIS

8200 DELMAR BLVD
LOC. No. 18K531284

BOOK 8457 PAGE 284
PARCELS 1 & 2

ZONED "LC"

AREA
48,050 SQ FT
1.10 ACRES

SITE BENCHMARK
CUT "L" = 606.23

DN

POTENTIAL LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENT, TYP.

10 FEET LANDSCAPE BUFFER ZONE

POTENTIAL PLAYGROUND/ GARDEN

COPYRIGHT ©
 DG2 DESIGN

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT #:

DRAWING TITLE

STAMP

NO. ISSUED FOR DATE

Warning:  It is a violation of the law for any person, unless acting under the  direction of a licensed landscape architect, to alter an item in any way.  If an item in this document is altered, the altering landscape architect, if other than the landscape architect of record, shall affix to the item his seal and the notation "altered by" follows by his signature and the date of such alteration, and the specific description of the alteration.

AG
U

D
AS

 IS
R

AE
L 

SY
N

AG
O

G
U

E

82
02

 D
EL

M
AR

 B
LV

D
.

24-397

PRELIMINARY
FOR INFORMATION ONLY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

Kristy DeGuire
Landscape Architect

LA-2010000189

4835 MO 109, SUITE 102
EUREKA, MO 63025
TEL: 636.549.9007

www.dg2design.com

DG2 DESIGN MISSOURI STATE
CERTIFICATE

OF AUTHORITY #LC1126925

CONSULTANT

da
te

G
:\D

G
2 

D
ES

IG
N

\P
R

O
JE

C
TS

\2
02

4\
24

-3
97

 A
gu

da
s 

Is
ra

el
 o

f S
t. 

Lo
ui

s\
D

W
G

\S
he

et
s\

L1
00

 P
la

nt
in

g 
Pl

an
.d

w
g

REV# REV NAME REV DATE

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y,
 S

T.
 L

O
U

IS
 C

O
U

N
TY

, M
IS

SO
U

R
I 6

31
24

LEGEND

10 FEET LANDSCAPE BUFFER ZONE

POTENTIAL LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENT

POTENTIAL PLAYGROUND/ GARDEN

L100

LANDSCAPE SITE PLAN



COPYRIGHT ©
 DG2 DESIGN

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT #:

DRAWING TITLE

STAMP

NO. ISSUED FOR DATE

Warning:  It is a violation of the law for any person, unless acting under the  direction of a licensed landscape architect, to alter an item in any way.  If an item in this document is altered, the altering landscape architect, if other than the landscape architect of record, shall affix to the item his seal and the notation "altered by" follows by his signature and the date of such alteration, and the specific description of the alteration.

AG
U

D
AS

 IS
R

AE
L 

SY
N

AG
O

G
U

E

82
02

 D
EL

M
AR

 B
LV

D
.

24-397

PRELIMINARY
FOR INFORMATION ONLY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

Kristy DeGuire
Landscape Architect

LA-2010000189

4835 MO 109, SUITE 102
EUREKA, MO 63025
TEL: 636.549.9007

www.dg2design.com

DG2 DESIGN MISSOURI STATE
CERTIFICATE

OF AUTHORITY #LC1126925

CONSULTANT

da
te

G
:\D

G
2 

D
ES

IG
N

\P
R

O
JE

C
TS

\2
02

4\
24

-3
97

 A
gu

da
s 

Is
ra

el
 o

f S
t. 

Lo
ui

s\
D

W
G

\S
he

et
s\

L1
00

 P
la

nt
in

g 
Pl

an
.d

w
g

REV# REV NAME REV DATE

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y,
 S

T.
 L

O
U

IS
 C

O
U

N
TY

, M
IS

SO
U

R
I 6

31
24

L101

POTENTIAL PLANT
PALETTE



 

CUP-24-01 8348 Olive Boulevard – Banquet Hall 
Page 1 of 5 

 

Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8500, Fax: (314) 862-3168 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Meeting Date March 27, 2024 

File Number CUP-24-01 

Council District 3 

Location 8348 Olive Boulevard 

Applicant The Showroom Event Center LLC (attn. Ruby P. Walsh) 

Property Owner MRD Realty LLC 

Request Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for a banquet hall in the “GC” 
General Commercial District 

 

 
Comprehensive Plan Conformance:  
[ X ] Yes  [  ] No      [  ] No reference 
 
Staff Recommendation:    
[  ] Approval [ X ] Approval with Conditions [  ] Denial 
 
Attachments: 

A. Application 
B. Narrative 
C. Floor Plan 
D. Photos 

 
 
Applicant Request 
The applicant, Ruby P. Walsh of The Showroom Event Center LLC, is requesting a Conditional Use Permit 
(CUP) to allow for a banquet hall at 8348 Olive Boulevard, located in the “GC” General Commercial District. 
Ms. Walsh is a co-owner of MRD Realty LLC, which is the property owner of record. The applicant is not 
proposing any exterior building modifications or expansions. The previous use was office/warehouse. 
 
Existing Property 
The subject property is located behind three commercial buildings (8336, 8340, and 8356 Olive Boulevard) 
which have street frontage. The subject property therefore does not have direct frontage to Olive, so 
access to the site is via a private drive located between 8340 and 8356 Olive. The building on the subject 
property was built in 1962 and is about 20,080 square feet. Currently, there are two tenants in the building 
that are both used as office/warehouse for two construction companies. The proposed banquet hall 
would occupy the easternmost space in the building, which is about 8,240 square feet. 

The property is zoned General Commercial (GC) and is not within any historic district. Most of the property 
is within the 500-year floodplain, and a small portion of the property near the south property line is within 
the 100-year floodplain. No structures are located within the 100-year floodplain.  



 

CUP-24-01 8348 Olive Boulevard – Banquet Hall 
Page 2 of 5 

Existing Zoning & Land Use Surrounding Zoning & Land Use 

Existing Zoning:  General Commercial (CC) North: General Commercial (GC); Retail, office, 
day care center, dance studio 

Existing Land Use: Multi-tenant commercial 
with office/warehouse 
uses 

East: General Commercial (GC); Retail, 
office/warehouse 

Proposed Zoning: No change South: Public Activity (PA); Park (Ruth Park 
Woods) 

Proposed Land Use: Multi-tenant commercial 
with banquet hall 

West: General Commercial (GC); Auto repair 
shop, office  

 
Surrounding Zoning 

 
Analysis 
Land Use and Zoning 
The proposed use of a banquet hall is a conditional use in the “GC” General Commercial District. The 
applicant’s proposed floor plans for the tenant space include a banquet hall (1,700 sf), showroom (1,500 
sf), storage (4,040 sf), and a few ancillary spaces. The total gross square footage being occupied by the 
applicant is 8,240 sf.  

Because the requested Conditional Use Permit is only for a change of use and no exterior modifications 
or expansions are proposed, any “non-conforming situations” that currently exist with the property are 
allowed to continue existing unless changes made to the site or building result in an increase in the degree 
of the non-conforming situation. The only standards in the zoning code impacted by the change of use are 
the off-street parking requirements, described below. 
 

8348 Olive 
Boulevard 

Ruth Park Woods 



 

CUP-24-01 8348 Olive Boulevard – Banquet Hall 
Page 3 of 5 

Off-Street Parking and Loading Requirements 
The subject property has 34 parking spaces, including two (2) accessible spaces. Of the 34 spaces, nine (9) 
spaces are reserved for two existing tenants in the building. There is an additional space that is currently 
vacant but will soon be occupied by the Historical Society of University City, which will use the 4,500 
square foot space for storage. Per the parking requirements, this space would require (5) parking spaces. 
Therefore, of the 34 parking spaces on-site, 14 are dedicated for other tenants, and the remaining 20 
parking spaces are available for the proposed banquet hall/showroom. 
 
“Places of public assembly,” which include banquet halls, require one (1) parking space for every 50 square 
feet of floor area where no fixed seating is provided. The proposed banquet hall will not have fixed seating; 
rather it will provide rearrangeable tables and chairs for events hosted in the space. With 1,200 square 
feet of net seating area in the event space, 24 parking spaces are required. 
 
The proposed use also includes 1,500 square feet of showroom area. The zoning code does not specify 
the parking requirements for a showroom. The closest use in the schedule of off-street parking space 
requirements would be “furniture or appliance stores,” which require one (1) space for every 400 square 
feet. Therefore, the showroom portion of the space requires four (4) parking spaces.  
 
After speaking with University City building inspectors, it appears the showroom space may be being set 
up for banquet hall, which would increase the parking requirements. If the showroom ends up being used 
as a banquet hall, it will require an additional 23 parking spaces. This is assuming that only 75% (1,125 sf) 
of that room can be used for tables and seating. 
 
Between the proposed uses of banquet hall (1,200 net sf) and showroom (1,500 sf), 28 parking spaces 
are required per code. If in the future, the applicant wishes to use the showroom as a banquet hall as 
well, an amended Conditional Use Permit would be required at that point. The applicant is co-owner of 
the adjacent property to the east (8312 Olive), where there may be opportunity for a shared parking 
agreement to satisfy the increased parking requirements. 
 
The zoning code includes a few exceptions to the minimum required parking spaces. The exceptions which 
are relevant to this CUP are described below. 
 

 400.2130(B) Exception For Change Of Use Of Existing Commercial Buildings 
Through the conditional use permit procedure, the required parking can be reduced by up to 
25%, when commercial buildings are being reused, subject to a few conditions: 

1. The reduction shall not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the off-street parking 
space requirements for the proposed use. 

2. No reduction shall be made in the amount of existing available off-street parking 
spaces on-site. 

3. The proposed use does not involve an expansion of the building that would result in 
additional parking or loading space requirements. 

4. Notwithstanding compliance with other standards contained in this Article (e.g., 
setbacks and landscaping), any portion of the site that can be reasonably converted 
to off-street parking shall be so used to satisfy a portion of the parking requirement. 

5. The reduction shall not result in spill-over parking on adjacent or nearby properties. 
In making its determination, the Plan Commission and City Council shall consider 
information on the parking and loading demand associated with the proposed use as 
presented by the applicant and City staff. 



 

CUP-24-01 8348 Olive Boulevard – Banquet Hall 
Page 4 of 5 

With this exception, the number of required parking spaces (28) can be reduced by 7.0 spaces. 
 

 400.2130(E) Exception For Uses Located Near Transit Stations And Stops 
For uses located within five hundred (500) feet of a public transit station or stop, the off-street 
parking requirements may be reduced by ten percent (10%). The Loop Trolley stops and stations 
shall not be included in this exception. 
With this exception, the number of required parking spaces (28) can be reduced by 2.8 spaces. 
 

 400.2700(D)(2) Adjustments to Standards through the CUP Procedure. The City Council, in 
imposing conditions and restrictions, may adjust the standards set forth in this Chapter when it 
finds such adjustment will be more effective in achieving the spirit and intent of the Chapter. 
Such adjustments are permitted to be more restrictive or less restrictive, provided that no 
dimensional regulations or standard shall become less restrictive by a factor of more than twenty 
percent (20%). 
With this exception, the number of required parking spaces (28) can be reduced by 5.6 spaces. 

 
With the above exceptions, the number of required parking spaces can be reduced to 13 spaces. The 
subject property has 20 parking spaces available for the proposed banquet hall/showroom. Additionally, 
staff is of the opinion that the other tenants in the subject property have complimentary peak periods of 
parking demand. If the Plan Commission recommends and City Council approves the above parking 
exceptions, the applicant would comply with the parking requirements.  
 
Comprehensive Plan 
The future character and land use map of the comprehensive plan identifies the subject property as 
“Community Corridor”. The proposed uses do not conflict with this character type. 
 
Review Criteria 
The applicant is in accordance with the Conditional Use Permit review criteria, as set forth in §400.2710 
of the Zoning Code, and listed below: 
 

1. The proposed use complies with the standards of this Chapter, including performance standards, 
and the standards for motor vehicle-oriented businesses, if applicable, as contained in 
Section 400.2730 of this Article. 

2. The impact of projected vehicular traffic volumes and site access is not detrimental with regard 
to the surrounding traffic flow, pedestrian safety, and accessibility of emergency vehicles and 
equipment. 

3. The proposed use will not cause undue impacts on the provision of public services such as police 
and fire protection, schools, and parks. 

4. Adequate utility, drainage and other such necessary facilities have been or will be provided. 
5. The proposed use is compatible with the surrounding area. 
6. The proposed use will not adversely impact designated historic landmarks or districts. 
7. Where a proposed use has the potential for adverse impacts, sufficient measures have been or 

will be taken by the applicant that would negate, or reduce to an acceptable level, such potentially 
adverse impacts. Such measures may include, but not necessarily be limited to: 

a. Improvements to public streets, such as provision of turning lanes, traffic control islands, 
traffic control devices, etc. 

b. Limiting vehicular access so as to avoid conflicting turning movements to/from the   site 
and access points of adjacent properties, and to avoid an increase in vehicular traffic in 

https://www.ecode360.com/28294843#28294843


 

CUP-24-01 8348 Olive Boulevard – Banquet Hall 
Page 5 of 5 

nearby residential areas. 
c. Provision of cross-access agreement(s) and paved connections between the applicant's 

property and adjacent property(ies) which would help mitigate traffic on adjacent streets; 
d. Provision of additional screening and landscape buffers, above and beyond the minimum 

requirements of this Chapter; 
e. Strategically locating accessory facilities, such as trash storage, loading areas, and drive-

through facilities, so as to limit potentially adverse impacts on adjacent properties while 
maintaining appropriate access to such facilities and without impeding internal traffic 
circulation; 

f. Limiting hours of operation of the use or certain operational activities of the use (e.g., 
deliveries); and 

g. Any other site or building design techniques which would further enhance neighborhood 
compatibility. 

 
Findings of Fact 
According to §400.2720, the Plan Commission shall not recommend approval of a conditional use permit 
unless it shall, in each specific case, make specific written findings of fact based directly upon the particular 
evidence presented to it supporting the conclusion that the proposed conditional use: 

1. Complies with all applicable provisions of this Chapter; 
2. At the specific location will contribute to and promote the community welfare or convenience; 
3. Will not cause substantial injury to the value of neighboring property; 
4. Is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, neighborhood development plan (if applicable), the 

Olive Boulevard Design Guidelines (if applicable), and any other official planning and development 
policies of the City; and 

5. Will provide off-street parking and loading areas in accordance with the standards contained in 
Article VII of this Chapter. 

 
Process – Required City Approvals 
Plan Commission.  Section 400.2700(C) of the Zoning Code requires that CUP applications be reviewed by 
Plan Commission.  The Plan Commission shall make a recommendation to the City Council for their 
consideration.  A public hearing is required at the Plan Commission meeting. 
 
City Council.  Section 400.2700(D) of the Zoning Code requires that CUP applications be reviewed by City 
Council for final decision, subsequent to a public hearing and recommendation from Plan Commission.  In 
conducting its review, City Council shall consider the staff report, Plan Commission’s recommendation, 
and application to determine if the proposed CUP application meets the requirements of the Zoning Code. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit for the property located at 8348 Olive 
Boulevard, with the following conditions: 

1. A banquet hall use is approved for 1,700 square feet (1,200 net square feet of seating area). 
2. A reduction in the number of required off-street parking spaces is approved, from 28 spaces to 

20 spaces, per Sections 400.2130(B), 400.2130(E), and 400.2700(D)(2).  
3. The subject property must be brought into compliance with Article VIII “Sign Regulations” and all 

building code regulations. 
4. The maximum occupant load for the proposed banquet hall (1,200 net square feet) is 80 people. 
























	AGENDA
	VIRTUAL MEETING DETAILS
	ADP4F5E.tmp
	MEETING MINUTES (DRAFT)

	Agenda - 2024-03-27 Plan Commission.pdf
	AGENDA
	VIRTUAL MEETING DETAILS

	SUB 22-08 Civic Complex Lot Consolidation Staff Report (2024 Version).pdf
	University City Lot Consolidation_2024-03-22.pdf
	R5085_Consolidation-Pg1
	R5085_Consolidation-Pg2





